
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 4
MANAGER'S REPORT

SR 6 A General Manager's Rpt 7
SR 6 A GM Rpt Fin Mgr Rpt 10
SR 6 A GM Rpt Fin Mgr Rpt Cash & Investments
Balances 12
SR 6 A GM Rpt Fin Mgr Rpt Debt Schedule 13
SR 6 A Fire Chief Report 14
SR 6 A Fire Stats June 2013 16
SR 6 A Dist Eng Rpt Addendum to GM Rpt 17
SR 6 A Cambria EIS_EIR 2013Jun19 attach to Eng rpt 18
SR 6 A Utilities Manager 19
SR 6 A Copy of WELL LEVEL SUMMARIES 6-15-13 21
SR 6 A Facilities and Resources Report 22
SR 6 A GM Rpt Admin Office Rpt June 2013 clean 23

Consideration to Approve Expenditures May 2013
SR 7 A Expenditure Report for May, 2013 24
SR 7 A Expenditure Report Department Codes 35

Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular
Meeting, May 23, 2013

SR 7 B 2013 0523 DRAFT CCSD MINUTES 36
Consideration to Adopt Resolution 20-2013 Approving Award of
Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Contract

SR 7 C FHFR Staff Report Contract Award 2013 FINAL 42
SR 7 C 2013 FHFR Contract pkg 43
SR 7 C Reso 20 2013 Award of Contract 55
SR 7 C Exhibit E Bushwacker 1 Bid Proposal 56

Consideration to Approve Easement Agreement between CCSD
and SLO County for Dedication of Easement from CCSD to
SLO County for Property Located on Main Street Cambria APN
013-151-045 Main Street Bridge Project

SR 7 D Easement Deed to PGE supporting Main St
bridge project FINAL 57
SR 7 D attachments re PGE-CCSD easment deed 58

Consideration to Adopt Resolution 25-2013 Approving Revised
Senior Water Operator Salary Rate

SR 7 E Consideration to Adopt Reso 25 2013 Apprv
Senior Water Systems Revised Salary Range clean 64
SR 7 E Reso 25 2013 Appv Water Systems Op Revised
Salary Range clean 65
SR 7 E Exhibit A to Reso 25 2013 SEIU sal chart 7-1-13 66

Consideration to Adopt Resolution 26-2013 Approving Revised
Facilities and Resources Supervisor Salary Rate

SR 7 F Consideration to Adopt Reso 26 2013 Approving
Revised Facilities and Resources Supervisor Salary
Range 67

1



SR 7 F Reso 26 2013 Appv Facilities and Resources
Revised Salary Range clean 68
SR 7 F Exhibit A to Reso 26 2013 MCE sal chart 7-1-13 69

Consideration to Approve Resolution 27-2013 of the Board of
Directors of the Cambria Community Services District in Support
of the Preservation of Tax-Exempt Financing

SR 7 G Adopt Reso in Support of Preserving Tax
Exempt Financing FINAL 70
SR 7 G Letter to Senator Feinstein 71
SR 7 G Letter to Senator Boxer 73
SR 7 G Letter to Congresswoman Capps 75
SR 7 G Reso 27-2013 77

Consideration of Report Regarding Personnel Matters and
General Manager Authority

SR 7 H CCSD staff report re Personnel Matters and
General Manager Authority 79

Consideration of Resolution 29-2013 Adopting a Revised Board
of Directors Expense Reimbursement Policy

SR 7 I CCSD Staff Report Board Reimbursement Policy 81
SR 7 I CCSD Reso Travel Policy--GC 532322 82

Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 21-2013
Approving the CCSD Budget for Fiscal Year 2013/2014

SR 8 A Adopt Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Budget 90
SR 8 A FY 2013-2014 Budget Executive Summary 92
SR 8 A FY 2013-2014 Organization Chart 95
SR 8 A Draft FY 2013-2014 Budget 96
SR 8 A Approve FY 2013-2014 Budget Reso 21-2013 126

Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 22-2013
Approving a 1.3% CPI Adjustment in the Fire Suppression
Benefit Assessment

SR 8 B Adopt 1.3% Increase in Fire Sup Bene Assess 128
SR 8 B Approve 1.3% Increase Fire Supress Bene
Assess Reso 22-2013 129

Discussion and Consideration to Introduce Ordinance 04-2013
Adding Chapter 1.06 to Provide Informal Bidding Procedures
under the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act
(Section 22000 et seq. of the California Public Contract Code)
and Adopt Resolution 24-2013 in the Matter of Uniform Public
Construction Cost Accounting Procedures

SR 8 C Staff Report Uniform Construction Cost
Accounting Ordinance DRAFT 130
SR 8 C Draft Ordinance 04-2013 adding Chapter 1.06
to Provide Informal Bidding Procedures 132
SR 8 C UPCCAA Reso DRAFT 135

Discussion and Consideration to Confirm Itemized Report and
Consider Adoption of Resolution 23-2013 to Collect Delinquent
Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Charges on the County
Tax Roll

SR 8 D Adopt Reso to Collect Delinquent Solid Waste
Collection Charges to Tax Roll 137

2



SR 8 D Reso 23 2013 Solid Waste Deliquency
Collection 139
SR 8 D Itemized List of Delinquent Solid Waste
Accounts 141

Discussion and Consideration of Numerical or Percentage Limit
Related to Amendment of San Luis Obispo County Growth
Management Ordinance

SR 9 A Consideration of Numerical or Percentage Limit
Related to Amendment of SLO County Growth
Managemen Ordinance 142

Discussion and Consideration to Approve Paramedic Service
Provider Agreement between County of San Luis Obispo
Emergency Medical Services Agency and Cambria Community
Services District

SR 9 B Approval of Paramedic Service Provider
Agreement 144
SR 9 B ALS Provider Agreement Cambria CSD Fire 6-
14-13 Final Version 146

Discussion and Consideration to Cast Ballot for California
Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of Directors Election
2013, Region Four

SR 9 C Cast Ballot CSDA Board of Directors 2013
Region Four Seat B 151
SR 9 C CSDA BALLOT INFORMATION 152

Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 28-2013 for
the Election of Directors to the Special District Risk
Management Authority Board of Directors

SR 9 D SDRMA Election of Directors to SDRMA 157
SR 9 D Resolution 28 2013 SDRMA Ballot 158
SR 9 D SDRMA Election Ballot Instructions_Candidate
Statements 160

3



   

 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, June 27, 2013– 12:30 PM 
VETERANS MEMORIAL BUILDING, 1000 MAIN ST., CAMBRIA, CA 

 

AGENDA 
This agenda is prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. By listing a topic on 
this agenda, the District’s Board of Directors has expressed its intent to discuss and act on each item. In 
addition to any action identified in the summary description of each item, the action that may be taken by 
the Board of Directors shall include: a referral to staff with specific requests for information; continuance; 
specific direction to staff concerning the policy or mission of the item; discontinuance of consideration; 
authorization to enter into negotiations and execute agreements pertaining to the item; adoption or 
approval; and disapproval. 
 
Copies of the staff reports or other documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the 
agenda are on file in the Office of the District Clerk, available for public inspection during District business 
hours. If requested, the agenda and supporting documents shall be made available in alternative formats 
to persons with a disability. The District Clerk will answer any questions regarding the agenda. 
 
1. OPENING  

A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Establishment of Quorum 
D. Report from Closed Session – No report 
 

2. SPECIAL REPORTS  
A. SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT REPORT 
B. FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 

(Estimated Time: 20 minutes) 
 

3. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS/PRESENTATIONS 
A. Cambria Tourism Board Presentation, Linda Finley 

 (Estimated Time: 15 minutes) 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public may now address the Board on any item of interest within the jurisdiction 
of the Board but not on its agenda today. In compliance with the Brown Act, the Board cannot 
discuss or act on items not on the agenda. Each speaker has up to three minutes. Speaker slips 
(available at the entry) should be submitted to the District Clerk. 

(Estimated Time: 20 minutes) 
 

5. AGENDA REVIEW: ADDITIONS/DELETIONS AND PULLED CONSENT ITEMS 
(Estimated Time: 5 minutes) 

 
6. MANAGER’S AND BOARD REPORTS 

A. MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

B. MEMBER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

4



CCSD Agenda 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 
Page 2 

(Estimated Time: 10 minutes) 
 
7. CONSENT AGENDA  

All matters on the consent calendar are to be approved by one motion. If Directors wish to 
discuss a consent item other than simple clarifying questions, a request for removal may be 
made. Such items are pulled for separate discussion and action after the consent calendar as a 
whole is acted upon. 
 
A. Consideration to Approve Expenditures May 2013 

 
B. Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular Meeting, 

May 23, 2013 
 

C. Consideration to Adopt Resolution 20-2013 Approving Award of Fire 
Hazard Fuel Reduction Contract 
 

D. Consideration to Approve Easement Agreement between CCSD and SLO 
County for Dedication of Easement from CCSD to SLO County for 
Property Located on Main Street Cambria APN 013-151-045 Main Street 
Bridge Project 
 

E. Consideration to Adopt Resolution 25-2013 Approving Revised Senior 
Water Operator Salary Rate 
 

F. Consideration to Adopt Resolution 26-2013 Approving Revised Facilities 
and Resources Supervisor Salary Rate 
 

G. Consideration to Approve Resolution 27-2013 of the Board of Directors of 
the Cambria Community Services District in Support of the Preservation of 
Tax-Exempt Financing 
 

H. Consideration of Report Regarding Personnel Matters and General 
Manager Authority 
 

I. Consideration of Resolution 29-2013 Adopting a Revised Board of 
Directors Expense Reimbursement Policy 
 

(Estimated Time: 15 minutes) 
 

8. HEARINGS AND APPEALS 
 

A. Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 21-2013 Approving the 
CCSD Budget for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 
 

B. Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 22-2013 Approving a 
1.3% CPI Adjustment in the Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment 
 

C. Discussion and Consideration to Introduce Ordinance 04-2013 Adding 
Chapter 1.06 to Provide Informal Bidding Procedures under the Uniform 
Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (Section 22000 et seq. of the 

5



CCSD Agenda 
Thursday, June 27, 2013 
Page 3 

California Public Contract Code) and Adopt Resolution 24-2013 in the 
Matter of Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures 
 

D. Discussion and Consideration to Confirm Itemized Report and Consider 
Adoption of Resolution 23-2013 to Collect Delinquent Solid Waste 
Collection and Disposal Charges on the County Tax Roll 
 

(Estimated Time: 60 minutes) 
 
9. REGULAR BUSINESS 

 
A. Discussion and Consideration of Numerical or Percentage Limit Related to 

Amendment of San Luis Obispo County Growth Management Ordinance 
 

B. Discussion and Consideration to Approve Paramedic Service Provider 
Agreement between County of San Luis Obispo Emergency Medical 
Services Agency and Cambria Community Services District 
 

C. Discussion and Consideration to Cast Ballot for California Special Districts 
Association (CSDA) Board of Directors Election 2013, Region Four 
 

D. Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 28-2013 for the 
Election of Directors to the Special District Risk Management Authority 
Board of Directors 
 

 (Estimated Time: 60 minutes) 
 

10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) 
Requests from Board members to receive feedback, direct staff to prepare information, and/or 
request a formal agenda report be prepared and the item placed on a future agenda. No formal 
action can be taken except to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. 
 

 
11. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION, 1316 Tamsen Street, Suite 201, Cambria 
 

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION pursuant to 
periodic performance evaluation as required by employment 
contract. 
Title: District Counsel 
 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION pursuant to 
periodic performance evaluation as required by employment 
contract. 
Title: General Manager 

6



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 6.A. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013   Subject: MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 
Administration 
 
Listed below are my General Manager’s Report for June 27, 2013 and other associated 
activities that I am working on with the assistance and support of CCSD Ad hoc Committees, 
staff, and district counsel.  
 

 Staff has completed the Final Budget for Fiscal Year the 2013/2014. Highlights of the 
Budget are included on pages 1-4 and provide the CCSD Board of Directors with a 
detailed explanation of both revenues and expenditures. One additional page has been 
added to show changes from the Draft Budget that was presented as part of the May 
Board of Directors meeting. I have provided the Board with an Executive Summary as 
part of the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Budget. 

 I continue to meet weekly with department managers and staff and conduct weekly 
telephone conference calls with our district counsel.  

 Staff continues to evaluate and resolve compliance related matters relating to both the 
water and wastewater departments.  
The SR4 Wells as previously mentioned numerous times over the last several months is 
running smoothly. Two additional tasks remain to be completed. The ability for the SR4 
well to turn itself off and on automatically based of the level in our reservoirs. This is the 
proper way for a water treatment facility to operate. Another key component regarding 
the SR4 well is to install a gravity sewer line from the reclaim tank and connect it to the 
collection system at the Leffingwell School. This will further our automation capability 
and eliminate environmental and operational concerns relating to the reclaim tank over- 
flowing. The CCSD is currently having the property that the sewer line will cross 
appraised for easement purposes. I will continue to keep the community and the Board 
appraised of ongoing improvements to the SR4 well. 

 The Water Department has relocated to the Wastewater Treatment Plant. The Facilities 
and Resources Department has moved into the old Water Department Facilities. Both 
offices within the old Water Department Facility have been completely painted, newly 
textured ceilings have been installed and new flooring. All of the work was done by the 
Facilities and Resources Department for a total cost of $ 500.00. Additional water 
relating supplies and equipment will be moved to the wastewater treatment facility within 
the week. Plans are in the works to dismantle the old blue filtronics tanks that currently 
sit in the old water yard. The County’s public works yard fence has been removed and 
the overall view corridor for the East Ranch improvements is starting to evolve. I will be 
presenting a power point presentation today relating to improvements the Facilities and 
Resources Department have made District wide. The power point will include several of 
the items I have listed above. Combining utilities operations the District has improved 
interdepartmental efficiency, communications and customer service. The benefits of the 
move were seen recently when both departments worked collaboratively on a water 
break on Main Street. The Facilities and Resources Department will now be able to 

7



 
 

 

mobilize in a more efficient manner specifically relating to the upkeep and ongoing 
maintenance required for the East and West Ranch. Facilities and Resources 
equipment that has sat outside for several years will now be housed inside in addition to 
the CCSD now has a centralized facility for carpentry, electrical, plumbing and 
painting...  

 The list of Capital Improvement Projects has been completed and provided to Alex 
Handler of Bartle Wells. This list will enable staff and our consultant to complete the 
connection fees study. The revised CIP list was instrumental in assisting staff with 
identifying and incorporating infrastructure improvements as part of the 2013/2014 
Fiscal Year Budget. Some additional work is being done relating to a previously 
designated Assessment Districts that were in existence prior to the formation of the 
CCSD. Staff anticipates bringing the revisions for connection fees to the Board of 
Directors in July for consideration.  

 I have authorized upgrading our GIS ArcView software to the most recent version. 
Recently the District has experienced several large water main breaks within the 
distribution system that required the isolation of valves. Staff experienced difficulty 
locating some of the valves. This resulting in larger area’s without water, thus impacting 
a larger than necessary customer base. Several independent contractors have compiled 
district information relating to the location of our valves and manholes. Staff is working 
with those contractors to export the information they gathered into a more manageable 
GIS format that will result in updated mapping for CCSD employees working in the field. 
The CCSD does have an operational GIS system; however the data within the system 
focuses on planning and environmental relating maps instead of infrastructure related 
resources.  

 The Fire Department working collaboratively with the Administrative Department 
conducted a recent recruitment for Reservist. The recruitment process is temporarily on 
hold until we can further evaluate the overall number of reservist the Department will 
need to operate in an efficient manner. 

 Staff has completed the draft of the documents to amend provisions of the CCSD 
Municipal Code and approve administrative procedures and other actions to implement 
the interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters and revise and Implement the CCSD’S 
Water Conservation Program. A Special Meeting was held on June 21, 2013 by the 
Cambria Community Services District Board of Directors. Direction regarding the final 
documents were given to staff and District Counsel and a final version will be presented 
to the Board of Directors as part of their July, 2013 Board Meeting.  
 
 

I attended the following meetings and or community events on behalf of the CCSD since 
CCSD’s last Board of Directors’ Meeting on May 23, 2013. 
 

 
 Met with the Budget Ad-hoc Committee to discuss and review the final budget for 

Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 
 Attended Parks, Recreation and Open Space Meeting.  
 I met with the Executive Director of FFRP.  
 I met with the Administrative Procedures Committee. 
 Attended American Legion Installation Dinner. 
 Attended Allied Arts Sunday performance 
 Attended Camp Ocean Pines Board of Directors Meeting 

8



 
 

 

 Attended Special Meeting of the Cambria Community Services District. 
 Attended FFRP Gathering in the Garden. 
 Attended CCHD Board of Trustee Meeting. 
 Conducted monthly Management team meeting to discuss and review both May 

and June agendas. Relating to CCSD Board Meetings. 
 

9



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING-JUNE 27, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FINANCE MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
AUDIT-The CCSD’s audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 have been 
posted to the CCSD’s website.  
 
BUDGET-The Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Operating Budget has been posted to the CCSD website.  The 
Third Quarter Revenue and Expenditure report for the nine months ended March 31, 2013 has been 
posted to the CCSD website.  A draft of the Fiscal year 2013/2014 Budget will be presented at today’s 
meeting.  
 
EXPENDITURES-There was one disbursement in excess of $100,000 during May, 2013-a loan 
payment to State Water Resources Control in the amount of $174,057. 
 
RESERVES-LAIF BALANCE-The balance in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) as of  
May 31, 2013 was $4,690,833.  The attached Schedule of Cash and Investments Balance indicates how 
the Cash and Investments balance compares to the prior month’s balance as well as for the same month 
in each of the prior 4 years.  Too much emphasis should not be placed on one month’s activity; rather 
the information should be looked at on a trend basis.   
   
The LAIF Balance is made up as follows (restrictions, if applicable, are noted): 
 
   FUND       AMOUNT 
  General      $ 3,670,598 
  General (Proposition 1A)    $    159,286 
  Water (Conservation Dept.-Lot Merger Program) $      19,982 
  Water (Operations)     $    335,403 
  Water (Capital)     $      53,985 
  Wastewater (Capital)     $    220,770    
  Wastewater (Operations)               $    230,859 
 
With the exception of the restricted funds to offset a potential future Proposition 1A take-away, final 
reserve amounts are determined after all other fiscal year activity is recorded, reconciled and audited, 
although the balances are monitored during the fiscal year to ensure that funds set-aside for specific 
programs, such as the Lot Merger Program, are not overspent. The above amounts have been updated 
based on the audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 with the exception of the Resource 
Conservation Department’s balance (for the Lot Merger Program), which has been updated as of March 
31, 2013.  The amounts have also been updated for the interest revenue received through March 31, 
2013. 
 
 
 

10



 
 
 
 
 
INTERNAL LOANS-As of May 31, 2013, the CCSD Board of Directors approved several internal 
loans to be made out of the General Fund to the Water and Wastewater Funds. To date, all of the costs 
that were to be paid from the loan proceeds were actually able to be fully paid for out of the Water or 
Wastewater Funds respectively with the exception of the $166,000 loan for ACE match requirements. 
As such, this is the only loan currently outstanding and no additional loans are expected to be required 
for activity through April 30, 2013.  
 

                                   AMOUNT   
                      LOAN                    OF LOAN    
BORROWING           AMOUNT                 COSTS       OUTSTANDING      PURPOSE 
       FUND         AUTHORIZED           TO DATE_         TO DATE_     OF LOAN       
 

       Water    $ 166,000            $ 166,000      $ 157,726             ACE Matching 
  
   
 
EXTERNAL LOANS-As of May 31, 2013 the CCSD external debt is as shown per the attachment, 
including interest rates and prepayment penalty provisions.  

11



12



13



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING JUNE 27, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 
 

Response information is attached and represents activities for the month of May 2013. Progress 
updates and highlights regarding the different programs and services our department provides 
are identified below: 
 
Prevention and Education (May 2013) 

 06 residential new and remodel fire plan reviews were completed. 
 07 residential and commercial technical fire inspections were conducted.  
 00 hydrant system flow test. 
 12 engine company commercial fire and life safety inspections were conducted. 
 04 public education event 
 13 residential smoke detectors were installed and or the batteries changed. 

 
Meetings and Affiliations (May 2013) 

 SLO County Chiefs Assn Meeting  May 01 0900-1300, Arroyo Grande 
 EMS Ad Hoc Committee   May 14 1530-1730, Cambria 
 County Communications ECC  May 15 1000-1200, Morro Bay  
 Coastal Incident Response   May 16 1300-1630, Morro Bay 
 EMS Ad Hoc Committee   May 21 1530-1730, Cambria 
 County EOC Communications  May 28 1400-1600, SLO 
 CCSD Admin Team Meeting   May 28 0900-1100, Cambria 

 
Operations 
 
The Fire Department responded to the Branch Fire to assist as part of the San Luis Obispo 
County mutual aid system on Sunday June 2nd.  The CCSD Fire Department sent Water Tender 
57 and two personnel to assist with the effort for a period of approximately 24 hours.  All 
expenses incurred for this response are reimbursable through the Forest Service.  The CCSD 
Fire Department participates in the San Luis Obispo county Mutual Aid System for immediate 
and planned need responses within the County. 
 
The North Coast Ocean Rescue (NCOR) Team participated in training drills recently that 
employed the use of the California Highway Patrol H-70 rescue helicopter.  The NCOR team 
practiced a skill known as “helocasting” which requires rescue swimmers to drop from the 
helicopter into the ocean to secure and rescue a victim to be lifted back into the aircraft via 
rescue cable. 
 
Captain Steve Bitto and a cadre of assistant instructors presented their 5th annual 
Rescue Boat Operations Course in Marin County last month. Participating in the training 
were departments from around the San Francisco Bay Area and Marin County.  This 
course is considered to be among the most comprehensive in Ocean Rescue Boat 
Operations available.   
 
The CCSD Fire Department and Human Resources recently completed a 
comprehensive recruitment for Reserve Firefighters.  Out of the many applications 
received, 18 candidates were invited to the testing process which consisted of a written 
and physical agility test and an oral interview panel.  Seven new personnel were 
selected to attend the 2013 CCSD Fire Department Training Academy which will begin 
June 24. 
 

14



 2

The CCSD Fire Department has received a tentative go ahead (if approved today by the 
CCSD Board of Directors) for Paramedic Provider Agency status.  The application for 
this advancement was submitted over 3 years ago in efforts to allow Cambria CSD Fire 
Department Paramedic personnel the ability to utilize paramedic advanced life support 
(ALS) skills as a normal part of their duties.  This effort was supported by the Cambria 
Community Healthcare District as a continuation and advancement of the excellent 
Emergency Medical Services provided to citizens and visitors to the community.  
 
 
Prevention 
 
The annual Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program is underway.  Approximately 1,800 
vacant parcels have been identified and noticed to abate weeds and other flammable 
debris to provide defensible space and fire safety in the community.  The deadline for 
owners to clear their parcels is July 12, 2013 
 
Fire Department staff are currently working to develop a disaster preparedness 
brochure and checklist to be distributed throughout the community.  The document will 
contain information about what to do in the event of a disaster and how to be prepared 
in advance.  Also provided will be a personal survival kit checklist.  This is a 
comprehensive list of items that should be obtained and kept in the household in case 
of emergency.  Information for this resource was obtained from the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA), United States Fire Administration (USFA), National Fire 
Academy (NFA), National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), Office of Emergency 
Services (OES) and other emergency service agencies in California and across the 
Country. 
 

15



CMB Fire Monthly Stats:  Incidents

Categories 13-Jan 13-Feb 13-Mar 13-Apr 13-May 13-Jun 13-Jul 13-Aug 13-Sep 13-Oct 13-Nov Dec-13  Totals

Fire 0 1 0 0 0 1

Hazardous Mat. 0 0 0 0 0 0

Medical* 30 41 33 33 30 167

Vehicle TC 0 3 0 1 1 5

Hazardous Situations 4 1 1 7 4 17

Public Service Assist 10 9 7 13 15 54

False Alarms 10 3 7 9 11 40

Agency Assist 0 0 1 0 0 1

Mutual Aid 2 0 0 0 1 3

Auto Aid 2 0 0 0 2 4

Rescue 0 0 0 0 0 0

Fire Investigations 0 0 0 0 0 0

Monthly Response Totals 58 58 49 63 64 292

Cumulative Totals 116 165 228 292 292

16



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING – JUNE 27, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

DISTRICT ENGINEER’S REPORT 
 
 
The following table summarizes last month’s activities from May 23, 2013 to June 19, 2013.   
Please also note that your District Engineer will be on vacation beginning June 20th, 2013 and 
will be returning to the office on July 8th, 2013.   
 
 
Item 
No. 

Description Activities/Project Status 

1 Capital Improvement Program 
& Connection/impact fee 
update. 

Continued to coordinate future water and wastewater 
project needs with connection fee rate consultant 
(Bartle Wells). 

2 Assistance to water & 
wastewater operations. 

Assistance was also provided in arranging for an 
inspector on the sanitary sewer collection system 
cleaning and closed circuit TV inspection, which will 
start towards the end of this month.  Attended project 
kickoff meeting with the Contractor (Pro Pipe) for this 
work on May 30, 2013.  A report was also provided 
to the SWRCB on the sanitary sewer overflow events 
that occurred during 2011.   Information on mapping 
that could be used to expand and update the 
CCSD’s GIS system was also gathered for purposes 
of developing a request for quotation.   

3 Water Conservation program  Coordinated with Maddaus Water Management on 
their review of the District Municipal Code and 
development of their letter report to further assess 
and develop recommendations for discussion as part 
of the June 21, 2013 workshop.   

4 Sanitary sewer extension to 
well SR-4 treatment facility. 

Completed arrangements with an appraiser for the 
easement that will be required.  Once preliminary 
layouts are complete, a meeting will be held with 
school district representatives. Goal is to complete 
the drain line this summer. 

5 Rodeo Grounds Pump Station 
Replacement and Stuart 
Street Tank 3. 

Received updated preliminary design report from 
RBF on May 16, 2013. Next steps to include 
development of coastal development permit 
application. Updated layout drawings are expected to 
arrive within the next two weeks.   

6 Long-term water supply 
project 

The Army Corps environmental consultant was in the 
field on 5/22 and 5/23.  The ACE Project Manager 
was on vacation as this staff report was being 
finalized, so follow up information may occur as 
green sheet addenda pages.    

7 Development and remodel 
projects 

Assisted admin staff with the review of proposed 
remodels and new development. Three remodel 
reviews and one demand offset letter were 
completed this past month. 

 

17



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 CAMBRIA EIS/EIR 1148 days? Wed 11/16/11Tue 1/6/15
2 Receive Preliminary Project Description 1 day Fri 2/17/12 Fri 2/17/12
3 NEPA EIS NOI/CEQA EIR NOP/Public Scoping Period 32 days Fri 2/24/12 Mon 3/26/12
4 Public Scoping Meeting 1 day Thu 3/15/12 Thu 3/15/12
5 Preliminary (first step) Screening 47 days Fri 3/16/12 Tue 5/1/12
6 Conceptual Maps & Narrative 13 days Wed 5/2/12 Mon 5/14/12
7 CCSD Workshop Number 1 1 day Thu 6/14/12 Thu 6/14/12
8 Evaluation & Development of Water Supply Alternatives 34 days Fri 6/15/12 Wed 7/18/12
9 CCSD Workshop Number 2 1 day Thu 7/19/12 Thu 7/19/12
10 Evaluation & Finalization of Water Supply Alternatives 8 days Fri 7/20/12 Fri 7/27/12
11 CCSD Special Board Meeting #1 1 day Thu 8/9/12 Thu 8/9/12
12 CCSD Board Meeting for Final Alternatives 1 day Tue 9/18/12 Tue 9/18/12
13 Engineering Conceptual Alternatives Report 407 days Fri 2/17/12 Fri 3/29/13
14 Engineering Project Description Preparation 69 days Wed 9/19/12 Mon 11/26/12
15 Project Description Submittal to Planning for EIR/EIS 158 days Tue 10/23/12 Fri 3/29/13
16 San Simeon Concept Description 1 day Tue 10/23/12 Tue 10/23/12
17 Whale Rock Concept Description 1 day Tue 10/23/12 Tue 10/23/12
18 Morro Bay Concept Description 1 day Wed 3/27/13 Wed 3/27/13
19 Shamel Park Concept Description 1 day Fri 3/29/13 Fri 3/29/13
20 Engineering Conceptual Alternatives Draft Report 

Submittal

21 USACE/CCSD Review of Alternatives Draft Report
22 Engineering Conceptual Alternatives Final Report
23 Final Report Submittal
24 Administrative Draft EIS/EIR Activities 654 days Wed 3/14/12 Fri 12/27/13
25 Administrative Draft EIS/EIR Preparation 535 days Wed 3/14/12 Fri 8/30/13
26 Initiate Existing Conditions 1 day Wed 3/14/12 Wed 3/14/12
27 Prepare Existing Conditions 215 days Mon 11/26/12 Fri 6/28/13
28 Analyze Impacts 47 days Mon 6/10/13 Fri 7/26/13
29 Prepare MMRP 33 days Mon 6/24/13 Fri 7/26/13
30 Finalize All Sections 33 days Mon 7/29/13 Fri 8/30/13
31 Administrative Draft EIS/EIR ‐ USACE/CCSD Review 5 days Mon 9/2/13 Fri 9/6/13
32 Chambers Revise 5 days Mon 9/9/13 Fri 9/13/13
33 DQC (USACE)  19 days Mon 9/16/13 Fri 10/4/13
34 Chambers Revise 5 days Mon 10/7/13 Fri 10/11/13
35 ATR Review (USACE) 5 days Mon 10/14/13 Fri 10/18/13
36 Response to ATR Comments 19 days Mon 10/21/13 Fri 11/8/13
37 ATR Review ‐ Back‐check (USACE) 19 days Mon 11/11/13 Fri 11/29/13
38 Office of Counsel Review (USACE) 12 days Mon 12/2/13 Fri 12/13/13
39 Incorporate OC comments 12 days Mon 12/16/13 Fri 12/27/13
40 Draft EIS/EIR for Public Review Activities 57 days Mon 12/30/13Mon 2/24/14
41 Draft EIS/EIR ‐ Preparation & Distribution 11 days Mon 12/30/13 Thu 1/9/14
42 45‐Day Public Review 46 days Fri 1/10/14 Mon 2/24/14
43 Public Meeting 1 day Mon 2/17/14 Mon 2/17/14
44 Administrative Final EIS/EIR Activities 109 days Tue 2/25/14 Fri 6/13/14
45 Administrative Final EIS/EIR ‐ Preparation 25 days Tue 2/25/14 Fri 3/21/14
46 Administrative Final EIS/EIR ‐ Review (USACE) 19 days Mon 3/24/14 Fri 4/11/14
47 Independent External Peer Review  25 days Mon 3/24/14 Thu 4/17/14
48 Incorporate Comments #1 12 days Mon 4/21/14 Fri 5/2/14
49 Administrative Final EIS/EIR ‐ Review (Agencies) 33 days Mon 5/5/14 Fri 6/6/14
50 ATR Review (USACE) 25 days Mon 5/5/14 Thu 5/29/14
51 Incorporate Comments #2 12 days Mon 6/2/14 Fri 6/13/14
52 Final EIS/EIR for Public Review Activities 101 days Mon 6/16/14 Wed 9/24/14
53 SPD Final EIS/EIR ‐ Preparation and Distribution 19 days Mon 6/16/14 Fri 7/4/14
54 HQUSACE Final EIS/EIR Review and Processing 33 days Mon 7/7/14 Fri 8/8/14
55 SPD ROD Review and Routing 12 days Mon 8/11/14 Fri 8/22/14
56 HQUSACE ROD Review 30 days Mon 8/25/14 Tue 9/23/14
57 Signed ROD 1 day Wed 9/24/14 Wed 9/24/14
58 Section 7 Activities 1148 days? Wed 11/16/11Tue 1/6/15
59 Initiate Biological Assessment (BA) 1 day Mon 11/26/12Mon 11/26/12
60 Prepare BA 40 days Mon 7/15/13 Fri 8/23/13
61 BA Review and Submittal to USFWS and NMFS 20 days Mon 8/26/13 Fri 5/2/14
62 USFWS and NMFS ‐ ESA Section 7 Consult 89 days Mon 5/5/14 Fri 8/1/14
63 USFWS 1st Extension 32 days Mon 8/4/14 Thu 9/4/14
64 USFWS 2nd Extension 32 days Fri 9/5/14 Mon 10/6/14
65 USFWS BO Preparation 46 days Tue 10/7/14 Fri 11/21/14
66 USFWS BO Extension 47 days Fri 11/21/14 Tue 1/6/15
67 NMFS ‐ EFH Consult 92 days Mon 5/5/14 Mon 8/4/14
68 Quarterly Agency Meetings (NMFS, FWS, DFG)
69 Quarterly Agency Meetings (NMFS, FWS, DFG) 1 1 day Wed 11/16/11Wed 11/16/11
70 Quarterly Agency Meetings (NMFS, FWS, DFG) 2 1 day Tue 4/17/12 Tue 4/17/12
71 Quarterly Agency Meetings (NMFS, FWS, DFG) 3
72 Quarterly Agency Meetings (NMFS, FWS, DFG) 4

FY 201... FY 2013FY 2012 FY2014

W S T M F T S W S T M F T S W S T M F T S W S T M F T S W S T M F T S W S T M F T S W S T M F T S W
Oct 2, '11 Nov 27, '11 Jan 22, '12 Mar 18, '12 May 13, '12 Jul 8, '12 Sep 2, '12 Oct 28, '12 Dec 23, '12 Feb 17, '13 Apr 14, '13 Jun 9, '13 Aug 4, '13 Sep 29, '13 Nov 24, '13 Jan 19, '14 Mar 16, '14 May 11, '14 Jul 6, '14 Aug 31, '14 Oct 26, '14 Dec 21, '14 Feb

B B B B B B B B B B

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration‐only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start‐only

Finish‐only

Deadline

Progress

Wed 6/19/13  Page 1 1  of 2

Project: Cambria EIS_EIR 19June2
Date: Wed 6/19/13

18



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING JUNE 27, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

UTILITIES MANAGER REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 

Water Department: (Includes May 2013 projects) 
 

 
 The Water Department continues to move equipment and tools over to the WWTP. 

Re-location project is taking longer than expected; however, progress is being made.  
 

 Installed new Chlorine metering pump and upgraded chlorine injection system at 
SR4. The new Chlorine dosing system has been on-line for over 6 weeks without any 
interruptions. 

 
 In order to eliminate any operational interruptions resulting from SR4 reclaim tank 

level and the reclaim process, we developed a schedule for draining the tank 2-3 
times a week. Since implementing this SR4 has been running and operating 12 
hours a day without any interruptions. 

 
 Staff continues to work with Alpha Electric upgrading SR4 process logic controller.  
 
 Working with Water Department staff reviewing treatment operations, daily process 

control strategies, and maintenance programs.  
 
 Dechance Construction finished repairing Charing Booster station; blow off located 

on Hwy 1, and Moonstone Beach valve replacement. 
 
 Due to on-going leaks staff upgraded and replaced 2 inch steel service line with a  

2 inch poly service line on Schoolhouse Lane. This will prevent any future service 
interruptions for that area. 

 
 Dechance Construction finished repairing fire hydrant and water main located at the 

end of Main Street.  
 
 Started developing a maintenance schedule for the Water Department using our 

KeepTraK preventive maintenance program. 
 
 Working with AllMax Software Company developing a better data management 

system by utilizing the operator 10 data program. This will greatly improve tracking, 
monitoring, and accessing all Water Department information including laboratory 
data, well production, well level data, and operation information.  

 
 CorPro inspecting all cathodic protection equipment throughout the Water 

Department.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
 
WasteWater Department: 
 

 Staff continues working on preventive maintenance program. 
 

 Staff pulled and rebuilt #1 Grinder motor. 
 
 Replaced #1 emergency hydraulic pump manifold. 
 
 Pulled #2 Return Activated Sludge pump and delivered to Lars Electric. Pump needs 

re-winding. 
 
 Miller drilling pulled and rebuilt #2 effluent Wastewater Treatment Plant pump.  
 
 Called, “The Pump Man Company” and scheduled appointment to have all lift station 

pumps inspected. 
 

 Working with CorPro to inspect and repair all cathodic protection equipment located 
throughout the WWTP and Collection System. 

 
 
Administrative: 
 
 

 Attending weekly meetings with both Water and Wastewater supervisors. 
 

 Working closely with General Manager, Finance Manager, and District Engineer 
regarding CIP and major maintenance projects. 

 
 Working with senior water operator reviewing Rodeo Grounds and Stuart Street tank 

booster pump station plans and submittals.  
 

 Attended meeting with ProPipe Inc. to discuss Hydro Cleaning and CCTV project. 
The anticipated start date for the project is June 24, 2013. 
 

 
Mike Finnigan 
Utilities Manager 

20



6/15/13 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
            WELL WATER LEVELS FOR 6/15/13

Reference
Distance Point Depth of

Ref. Point Distance Water
Well to Above Sea to Sea
Code Water Level Level Level Remarks

SANTA ROSA CREEK WELLS

23R 83.42 Not Read
SR4 82.00 Not Read
SR3 20.27 54.30 34.03
SR1 29.73 46.40 16.67
RP#1 21.37 46.25 24.88
RP#2 33.11 Not Read
21R3 9.13 12.88 3.75
WBE 12.85 16.87 4.02
WBW 17.02 Not Read

AVERAGE LEVEL OF DISTRICT'S SANTA ROSA WELLS = 16.90 FEET

SAN SIMEON CREEK WELLS

16D1 7.85 11.81 3.96
9M1 65.63 Not Read
9P2 11.21 19.11 7.90
9P7 19.59 Not Read
9L1 27.33 Not Read
SS4 16.65 25.92 9.27 Gradient = 1.37
9K2 18.35 30.23 11.88
SS3 20.98 33.25 12.27
SS2 20.06 34.01 13.95
SS1 19.50 34.07 14.57
11B1 105.43 Not Read
11C1 20.43 98.20 77.77

PFNW 93.22 Not Read
10A1 78.18 Not Read
10G2 62.95 Not Read
10G1 59.55 Not Read
10F2 66.92 Not Read
10M2 55.21 Not Read
9J3 43.45 Not Read

13.60 FEET

6/15/13
                                         
Red Font are the CCSD's Production Wells

21



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING – June 27, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT FACILITIES AND RESOURCES 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

o Fiscalini Ranch: 
 Trail Maps and Mutt Mitts: 

 Staff continues to refill trail pamphlets on all entrances to the Ranch 
and provide mutt mitts to FFRP volunteers. 

 Invasive Control: 
 Staff continues to work on controlling invasive plants on the ranch. 

All three hills along the bluff trail were mowed.  
 Fire Break: 

 Staff has been working on mowing fire breaks on the boundaries of 
the ranch. The following areas have been done: 

 100 feet behind Huntington 
 100 feet behind Windsor Blvd 
 100 feet behind Victoria Way and Warren 
 100 feet behind Wedgewood 
 100 feet behind Catholic Church and Rabobank 

o CCSD Lots: 
 Bids have been received to weed abate 44 district lots on the abatement 

list. 
 This year staff made an extra effort to solicit more contractors to bid 

on the lots.  
 Two dead and dangerous trees were removed on a CCSD owned lot in 

the corner of Burton and Ardath, by North Coast Tree Service. 
o Parks: 

 Skate Park: 
 Staff continues to provide weekly maintenance to the park. 

 
o Vet’s Hall: 

 48 events were held at Veterans Memorial Building since last Board 
meeting. Among those events were: Monterey Bay Marine Sanctuary 
Lectures, Weekly Farmers Market and American Legion Memorial Day 
Celebration. 

 Landscape Project: 
 Staff has been assisting the county and contractor in the installation 

of side walk. 
o Water Yard: 

 Work has begun on relocating facilities and resources office at the Water 
Yard. 

o Staff has been working on 2013/14 Budget. 
 
Submitted by: 
Carlos Mendoza 
Facilities and Resources Supervisor/ 
Fiscalini Ranch Preserve Manager 
 

22



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING June 27, 2013 
ADDENDUM TO GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE REPORT 
 

Administration: 
 
On Wednesday, June 12 the Administration Department received the new Ford Fusion 
that the Board recently authorized for acquisition. .  We will have the logo installed as 
soon as possible.     
 
 

Retrofit Point Bank: 
 
The Administration Department has recently taken over the retrofit upon resale 
inspections.  You may see Cortney Upthegrove Murguia out in the field.   
 

As of 6/18/2013 we have handed out 687 showerheads and 731 aerators. Commercial 
customers have received 204 aerators and 328 showerheads.  Residential customers 
have received 527 aerators, and 359 showerheads.   
 

We are currently working on the retrofit upon resale retrofit point total and will report the 
update of the point value resulting from these inspections at the June board meeting.   
 

The Retrofit point bank total at this time is 7155.   
 

Rebates:    5836 
Retrofit upon resale:  1319 
Total remaining points:  7155 
 

Conservation:   
 
We are continuing to network with other Central Coast public agencies during quarterly 
conservation meetings.   
 

We continue to reach out to the public and provide them with updates to changes within 
CCSD, and attend Farmer’s Market to distribute low flow fixtures.   
 

Cortney Upthegrove Murguia continues to receive training in this area and is scheduled 
to attend a Best Management Practices workshop on June 24 hosted by the California 
Urban Water Conservation Council.   
 
 

 
Submitted by, 
Monique Madrid 
Administrative Services Officer 

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



 

 
 
 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
P.O. Box 65 • Cambria, CA  93428  • Telephone:  (805) 927-6223 • Fax: (805) 927-5584 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADDENDA TO MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT CODES 

 FD  Fire Department  

 F&R  Facilities and Resources   

 ADM  Administration  

 RC  Resource Conservation  

 WD  Water Department  

 WW  Wastewater Department  

 PR  Parks & Recreation  
 

35



    CONSENT ITEM 7 B 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, MAY 23, 2013, 12:30 PM 
 

AGENDA ITEM  DISCUSSION OR ACTION 

1A.  CALL TO ORDER  President Thompson called the regular meeting to 
order at 12:35 PM.  

1B.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  President Thompson led the pledge of allegiance. 

1C.  ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM  President Thompson    Present 
Vice President Bahringer  Present 
Director Clift      Present 
Director Rice      Present 
Director Robinette    Present 
Staff Present: General Manager Jerry Gruber, 
District Counsel Tim Carmel, Finance Manager 
Alleyne LaBossiere, and District Clerk Kathy 
Choate. 

1D.  REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION    Counsel reported no closed session to report. 

2.  SPECIAL REPORTS   

A. Sheriff’s Department Report  Deputy Sheriff Stuart MacDonald reported 284 
calls for service, of those 44 were EMS calls. 

B. Fire Department Report  Chief Miller reported on uptick of vegetation fires. 
Cambria Fire and CCHD are continuing discussion 
regarding shared services. Recruitment is 
underway for Fire Reservists. Emergency drill with 
Sheriff’s Department was held at Santa Lucia 
Middle School. 

3.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS/PRESENTATIONS  Kyle Plummer presented his award winning “Korea 
Remembered” video, capturing the experiences of 
local American Korean War veterans and Korean 
War veterans present were recognized. 
Linda Finley, Cambria Tourism Board Presentation 
to be continued to June regular meeting. 

4.  PUBLIC COMMENT  Jo Ellen Butler, Cambria. Thanked Board on behalf 
Vets Hall fee waiver for FFRP Wildflower Show and 
donated $300 of event fees received for Vets Hall 
use. Commented on Ranch trail improvements. 
Jeff Hellman, Cambria. Requested clarification on 
Intent to Serve letters for Kingston Bay project. 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Cambria. Thanked CCSD, 
CCHD, and CalFire for their services. Commented 
on committees.  
President Thompson announced Coast Union 
fundraiser for Oklahoma tornado relief. 

5.  AGENDA REVIEW  Consent items 7C, D, and F pulled. Item 7E was 
revised and supplemental report provided 
continuing the item to a date uncertain pending 

36



CCSD Minutes 
Page 2 
May 23, 2013 

further review of the subject easement. 

6.  MANAGER’S AND BOARD REPORTS   

A. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

General Manager Gruber presented the manager’s 
report and provided Facilities and Resources 2012 
Projects Power Point and SR4 well improvement 
photos. 
Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Cambria. Commented on 
page 17 usage vs. production for 2013, SR4 well, 
current recruitments, and Army Corps of 
Engineers. 
Mary Webb, Cambria. Thanked General Manager 
for infrastructure projects being done and 
conservation efforts. Commented on existing 
commitment list. 
General Manager Gruber responded to questions. 
Board discussion followed. 

B. MEMBER AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  Director Clift reported on CSDA Legislative Days 
attended in Sacramento. Attended SLO County 
Board of Supervisors meeting regarding Growth 
Management Ordinance. Director Rice also 
attended. 
Director Robinette reported on Ad Hoc 
Conservation Committee meeting; consider 
conservation officer and public outreach.  
Director Bahringer reported on Ad Hoc 
Infrastructure and Facilities Report.  
Director Rice attended NCAC; new chair is Claudia 
Harman, Vice Chair Bruce Fosdyke. 

7.  CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approve expenditures for month of April 
2013 

B. Approve Minutes of Board of Directors 
regular meeting April 25, 2013 

C. Approve extension of Intent to Serve 
Letter for Kingston Bay Cambria LLP, 
Applicant, APN 024.191.052 

D. Approve extension of Intent to Serve 
Letter for San Luis Obispo County, 
Applicant, APN 022.123.003 

E. Continue PG&E Easement Agreement over 
CCSD for property located on Main Street 
Cambria APN 013.151.045, Main Street 
Bridge Project  

F. Adopt Resolution 18‐2013 to Approve the 
Water Treatment Operator III Position 
Description and Salary Range 

Director Clift moved to approve the consent 
agenda Items 7A, B, revised E, and F. Director Rice 
seconded. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes – 4, 
No – 0, Absent – 0, Abstain – 1 (Bahringer) 
 
Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Cambria. Commented on 
Resolution 12‐2013 and page 74 of agenda packet. 
Cori Marsalek, County of SLO Public Works 
Department, Main Street Bridge, Project Manager. 
Requested clarification on the delay of the agenda 
item. 
 
President Thompson introduced Item 7C. General 
Manager Gruber presented the report.  
 
Vari MacNeil, Cambria. Commented on issuance of 

37



CCSD Minutes 
Page 3 
May 23, 2013 

EDUs to new developments and opposes allowing 
large new user. 
Claudia Harman Worthen, Cambria. Commented 
on Kingston Bay Project and EDU allocation. 
Jeff King, Owner of Green, Ardath, and 
Londonderry property. Commented on additional 
conditions on project and confident facility can 
operate on imposed water requirements.  
Mary Webb, Cambria. Commented on APNs 
associated with this project and existing 
commitment list. Where did EDUs for APN 
024.191.052 come from? 
Jeff Hellman, Cambria. What allowed Board to 
move Peoples Self Help and Senior Living Facility 
projects moved forward ahead of wait list 
positions. 
Tina Dickason, Cambria. Commented on March 
and April meeting General Manager’s report. 
Opposes issuance of Intent to Serves during a 
moratorium. 
Board discussion followed. 
 
Director Rice moved to approve a one (1) year 
extension of Intent to Serve letter for Senior Care 
Facility, Kingston Bay Cambria LLP, Applicant, 
APN 024.191.052 Ardath Drive and Green Street 
property. Director Clift seconded. Roll call vote: 
Ayes – Director Rice, Clift 
Noes – Directors Bahringer, Robinette, Thompson 
Motion failed 3 ‐2 
 
Director Bahringer moved to approve a two (2) 
year extension of Intent to Serve letter for Senior 
Care Facility, Kingston Bay Cambria LLP, 
Applicant, APN 024.191.052. Director Robinette 
seconded. 
Roll Call Vote: 
Ayes – Directors Bahringer, Robinette, Clift, and 
President Thompson 
Noes – Director Rice 
Absent – None 
Motion carried 4 – 1 
 
President Thompson introduced Item 7D. General 
Manager Gruber presented the item. 
Public Comment: 
Mary Webb, Cambria. Commented on parcel 
022.123.003, not on existing commitment list. 

38



CCSD Minutes 
Page 4 
May 23, 2013 

Board discussion followed. 
 
Director Bahringer moved to extend the Intent to 
Serve letter for San Luis Obispo County, 
Applicant, APN 022.123.003, Cornwall property 
for a period of six months. Director Clift 
seconded. 
Board discussion followed. 
Public Comment: 
Jeri Ferrell, Friends of Library. Purchased in 
conjunction with County in 2005 for $518,000 with 
half of funding from Friends of the Library (FOL). If 
no extension, FOL would have to repay SLO County 
Library approximately $275,000. 
Brian Reynolds, County Library Director. 
Commented on the collaborative effort with 
Friends of Library for about 10 years on the new 
library. 
 
Director Bahringer moved to withdraw his 
motion. Director Clift moved to withdraw second.
 
Director Clift moved to approve extension of 
Intent to Serve letter for San Luis Obispo County, 
Applicant, APN 022.123.003 for one year with the 
specific finding that the unique basis for granting 
this extension is to protect the citizens of this 
community and Friends of the Library’s 
commitment to the development of a library and 
it shall not be considered precedent for any 
future extension of any Intent To Serve letter. 
Director Bahringer seconded.  
Ayes – 5, No – 0, Absent – 0  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
President Thompson introduced Item 7F. General 
Manager Gruber presented the staff report.  
Public Comment: 
Tina Dickason, Cambria. Commented on T3 
licensure. 
 
Director Rice moved to approve Resolution  
18‐2013 approving a new position of Water 
Systems Operator, and a position description and 
recommended salary range. Director Robinette 
seconded. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes – 5, 
No – 0, Absent ‐ 0 
 

39



CCSD Minutes 
Page 5 
May 23, 2013 

 

8.  HEARINGS AND APPEALS 
A.  Confirm Water and Wastewater Standby 

or Availability charges as provided in 
Government Code §61124(b) and adopt 
Resolution 15‐2013 confirming Water and 
Wastewater Standby or Availability 
charges for FY 2013/2014 

President Thompson introduced the item. General 
Manager Gruber presented the staff report.  
President Thompson opened the public hearing. 
No public comment: None 
President Thompson closed the public hearing. 
Director Robinette moved to adopt resolution  
15‐2013 confirming water and wastewater 
standby or availability charges to be assessed 
against each parcel for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. 
Director Bahringer seconded. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
Ayes – 5, No – 0, Absent ‐ 0 

B.  Adopt Resolution 16‐2013 declaring a 
public nuisance for the annual Fire Hazard 
Fuel Reduction Program 

President Thompson introduced the item. General 
Manager Gruber presented the staff report. 
President Thompson opened public hearing. 
Public Comment: None 
President Thompson closed the public hearing. 
Board discussion followed.  
Director Rice moved adoption of Resolution 
16‐2013 declaring a public nuisance within the 
CCSD and direct staff to proceed with mailing 
notices to abate and remove hazardous wildland 
fuels, in order to maintain community defensible 
space. Director Clift seconded. Motion carried 
unanimously. Ayes – 5, No – 0, Absent ‐ 0 
 

C. Adopt Resolution 17‐2013 confirming 2012 
Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction itemized report 
of the Cambria Community Services 
District 

President Thompson introduced the item. General 
Manager Gruber presented the item, correcting 
the number of parcels with zero balance to 18 of 
the 54. District Counsel summarized the item. 
President Thompson opened the public hearing. 
Public Comment: None 
Director Robinette moved to adopt Resolution  
17‐2013 confirming 2012 Fire Hazard Fuel 
Reduction cost report of the Cambria Community 
Services District and direct staff to submit all 
required documentation to the Tax Collector of 
SLO County. Director Rice seconded. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
Ayes – 4, No – 0, Absent – 1 (Clift) 
(Director Clift stepped out of meeting). 
 

D. Consideration of DRAFT Fiscal Year 
2013/2014 Operating Budget 

President Thompson introduced the item. General 
Manager Gruber presented the staff report. 
Finance Manager Alleyne LaBossiere  
Public Comment: 
Elizabeth Bettenhausen, Cambria. 

40



CCSD Minutes 
Page 6 
May 23, 2013 

Commented on conservation variability. 
Tina Dickason, Cambria. Commented on revenues 
increasing and conservation. Update website’s 
organizational chart. 
Mary Webb, Cambria. Supports reserves for capital 
outlay. Issues with Fire Department budget and 
reservists training and leaving the area; supports 
NCOR. 
Board discussion followed. 
The budget will be brought back to the Board for 
approval consideration at the June regular 
meeting. 

9.  REGULAR BUSINESS   

A. Consideration Approving possible 
relocation and or termination of 
agreement with the County of San Luis 
Obispo regarding the Public Works Yard 
located at the East Ranch Rodeo Grounds 

President Thompson introduced the item. General 
Manager Gruber presented the staff report. 
Board discussion followed. 
Director Clift moved to direct the General 
Manager to notify the County of San Luis Obispo 
Public Works of CCSD’s need of Public Works 
leased yard located at East Ranch Rodeo 
Grounds, give 30‐day notice and reiterate the fact 
that we do have other spaces they could 
consider. Director Rice seconded. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
Ayes – 5, No – 0, Absent ‐ 0 
 

B. Consideration of Bi‐Monthly or Quarterly 
Evening Study Sessions 

President Thompson introduced the item. Board 
discussion followed. Full board discussion followed 
regarding setting an agenda for second or third 
week in June for an evening study session.  

   

10.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) 
 

Director Rice commented on revised bylaws and is 
available to work on the draft revisions. 

11.  ADJOURN 
 

President Thompson adjourned the meeting at 
6:00 PM  

 

41



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.C. 
 
FROM: Mark Miller, Fire Chief 
  Steve Bitto, Fire Captain 
  Bill Hollingsworth, Fire Captain 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013  Subject:  Discussion and Consideration of   
        Resolution 20-2013 Approving Award of  
        Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Contract 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
Adopt Resolution 21-2012 approving: 
 

1. The award of the Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction (FHFR) Contract to Bushwacker 1; and 
 

2. Authorizing the General Manager to sign the contract for the 2013 Fire Hazard Fuel 
Reduction Program.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
All costs for clearing the parcels are billed directly to the property owner by the CCSD. Any 
unpaid billing will be collected via the San Luis Obispo County Tax Roll for calendar year 2014 in 
accordance with the provisions of Health and Safety Code Sections 14875 et seq. CCSD 
administrative fees are also included in the charges. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In accordance with the procedures in Health and Safety Code Sections 14875 et seq., as part of 
its annual Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program (FHFR) the CCSD contracts to provide for the 
removal of dangerous fuels and vegetation that have not been timely abated by property owners. 
Accordingly, the CCSD issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) the week of June 3rd for a 
contractor to abate and remove the fuels and vegetation. Proposals were due on June 14th at 
4:00 PM. The RFP is attached for information. 
 
One contractor proposal was received by the deadline and evaluated by the CCSD based upon 
the selection criteria outlined in the FHFR RFP and contract documents.  The contractor that has 
been selected, Bushwacker 1, submitted a responsive proposal, which is attached for reference. 
The 2013 FHFR Program Contract is also attached. 
 
Attachments: 

 Contract Requirements 
 Resolution 20-2013 with Exhibit A 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    

 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 

42



Rev 05/29/2013 

Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program 
Request for Proposals (RFP) 

May 28, 2013 
 

CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS FOR FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION 
PROPOSALS/BIDS 

 
The Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) is seeking proposals by Contractors for 
the Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program for 2013. 
 
CCSD typically, has notified approximately two-thousand (2000+) parcel owners to abate 
their property of dried weeds, down trees or slash. Those parcels that do not comply with 
the requirements are placed on the CCSD’s Contract list. Typically between fifty and one 
hundred (50-100) parcels are placed on the CCSD’s contract list. 
 
Required Scope and Schedule of Work 
The contractor selected will be required to provide weed abatement services as specified 
in Exhibit C, titled “Fire Department Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Policy 2013 – Scope 
of Services”, according to a schedule described in Exhibit B “2013 Fire Hazard Fuel 
Reduction Schedule.” 
 
Required Cost of Proposal, Qualifications, and Agreement 
Those submitting proposals must complete and submit the attached form identified as  
Exhibit E titled “Cambria Community Services District Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction 
Program – 2013, Cost Proposal Form.” The required information is contained on the 
form and includes the following: 
 
1. Types of equipment to be used and the cost of each to the property owner including 

operator costs. 
2. Move on Fee, as described in Exhibit “E”. 
3. Charges, per yard, for hauling away of the debris. 
4. All equipment must be inspected by the Fire Department for required fire safety 

items and spark arrestors. 
5. Pictures shall be taken by the Contractor before and after each lot is abated (as 

directed by the Cambria CSD Fire Department), logged with the lot abatement 
record and submitted to the Fire Department. 

 
Other Requirements 
A dated cover letter, signed by a person fully authorized to act on behalf of the 
CONTRACTOR, must be submitted with the proposal. The letter must indicate that the 
CONTRACTOR agrees to be bound by the proposal without modifications, unless 
mutually agreed by the CONTRACTOR and CCSD. 
 
A statement of qualifications and a list of five (5) references must be provided, along 
with documentation demonstrating the CONTRACTOR’s ability to maintain accurate 
records. 
 
The selected CONTRACTOR will be required to sign an agreement (see Fire Hazard 
Fuel Reduction Agreement) with the CCSD, and must provide proof of insurance 
coverage as indicated in Exhibit A – Legal Relations and Responsibilities to the 
Public, prior to commencing any work for the CCSD. The Cambria Community 
Services District, its officers, Board Members, managers and employees must be 
named as co-insured or additional insured.  

43



Rev 05/29/2013 

 
A Faithful Performance Bond will also be required. A cash deposit of $5000.00 or 
Assignment of a Financial Instrument acceptable to the CCSD may be substituted in 
lieu of a Faithful Performance Bond (see Exhibit D). All equipment must be inspected 
by the Fire Department to assure that all fire safety standards are met, including 
operational spark arrestors where required. 
 
Proposal Evaluation 
Proposals will be evaluated on the basis of the following criteria: 
1. Stated costs to the property owner- 60% 
2. Various types of equipment to be used by contractor- 10%  
3. Prior demonstrated ability to maintain accurate records- 10% 
4. Ability to complete the contract by August 19, 2013 and prior record of timely 

clearance completion 20% 
 
Proposal Deadline 
 
All proposals must be delivered to the Cambria CSD Administration Office, 1316 
Tamsen Street, Suite 201, Cambria CA. 93428; by 4:00 PM, Thursday, June 13, 
2013.  
An evaluation of proposals and selection of contractors who meet the requirements as 
stated will occur after 4:00 P.M. June 13, 2013. The selection is subject to CCSD Board 
of Directors approval at their next scheduled meeting on Thursday June 27th 2013. 
Proposals not meeting all the required standards and requirements will not be 
considered! 
 
Bid proposals must contain the following four documents or they will not be 
considered: 

1. Copy of a Fire Wise Defensible Space Field Training certificate for field 
supervisor(s); 

2. Completed copy of the Bid Proposal Form (Exhibit E); 
3. Signed cover letter as defined and stipulated in the: ‘Other Requirements’ 

first paragraph of the RFP; 
4. A signed statement of qualifications, and list of 5 references, as stipulated 

in the: ‘Other Requirements’ second paragraph of the RFP. 
If you have any questions, contact the Cambria Fire Department at (805) 927-6240. 
 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 
Mark Miller 
Fire Chief 
 
 
  

44



Rev 05/29/2013 

 
2013 FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION AGREEMENT 

 
This Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Agreement (“Agreement”) is made upon the date of 
execution, as set forth below, by and between, CONTRACTOR  and the Cambria 
Community Services District, "CCSD". The parties hereto, in consideration of the mutual 
covenants contained herein, hereby agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 
It is understood and agreed to: 
 
SCHEDULE OF CHARGES 
 
The CCSD will pay the following schedule of charges to the CONTRACTOR per the 
attached bid schedule, included as Exhibit E. 
 
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 
 
Exhibits A, B, C, D and E attached hereto are hereby incorporated herein by reference and 
made a part of this Agreement as if fully set forth at this point. 
 
OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 
 
A. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish and maintain throughout the term of this 

Agreement all proper insurance coverage as specified in "Legal Relations and 
Responsibilities to the Public" (Exhibit A). 

  
B. All work shall be completed as depicted in the Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction 

Schedule (Exhibit B). At all times the CONTRACTOR’s work shall be subject to the 
approval of the Fire Chief or his designee. 

 
C. The CONTRACTOR shall become familiar, and shall fully comply with CCSD Fire 

Hazard Fuel Reduction Policy (Exhibit “C”). 
 
D. The CONTRACTOR upon award of contract shall furnish a performance bond 

(Exhibit “D”). 
 
E. The CONTRACTOR agrees to timely and fully perform or provide the services 

specified in this Agreement. 
 
F. The CONTRACTOR must submit packaged bills for lots cleared with a cover page 

that lists the number of lots cleared and the total cost of the packaged bills.  
 
G. All parcel clearing charges must be submitted to the CCSD by August 19, 2013 

Failure to deliver the parcel clearance charges to the CCSD by this date will result 
in a 10% withholding of all charges that are delivered late to the CCSD as 
liquidated damages, assessed against the CONTRACTOR.  

 
MINIMUM AMOUNT OF SERVICE BY CONTRACTOR   
 
CONTRACTOR agrees to devote the hours necessary to perform the services set forth in 
this Agreement in an efficient and effective manner. CONTRACTOR may represent, 
perform services for and be employed by additional individuals or entities, at 
CONTRACTOR’s sole discretion, as long as the performance of these extra-contractual 

45



Rev 05/29/2013 

services does not interfere with or present a conflict with CCSD  business. 
 
 
 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
TERM: This Agreement will become effective on the date of execution set forth below, and 
will continue in effect until terminated as provided herein. 
 
SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED: CONTRACTOR agrees to perform or provide the 
services specified in this Agreement. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall determine the method, details and means of performing the above-
referenced services. 
 
CONTRACTOR may, at CONTRACTOR's own expense, employ such assistants as 
CONTRACTOR deems necessary to perform the services required of CONTRACTOR by 
this Agreement. CCSD may not control, direct or supervise CONTRACTOR's assistants or 
employees in the performance of those services. 
 
TOOLS AND INSTRUMENTALITIES: CONTRACTOR shall provide all tools, equipment 
and instruments to perform the services under this Agreement. 
 
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
TERMINATION ON NOTICE: Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any 
party hereto may terminate this Agreement, at any time, without cause by giving at least 
(30) thirty-days prior written notice to the other parties to this Agreement. 
 
TERMINATION OF OCCURRENCE OF STATED EVENTS:  This Agreement shall 
terminate automatically on the occurrence of any of the following events: 
 
(1)  Bankruptcy or insolvency of any party; 
(2) Sale of the business of any party; 
(3) The end of the (30) thirty-days as set forth above; 
(4) End of the contract to which CONTRACTOR'S services were necessary; or 
(5) Assignment of this Agreement by CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent 

of the CCSD. 
 
TERMINATION BY ANY PARTY FOR DEFAULT OF CONTRACTOR: Should any party 
default in the performance of this Agreement or materially breach any of its provisions, a 
non-breaching party, at their option, may terminate this Agreement, immediately, by giving 
written notice of termination to the breaching party. 
 
TERMINATION:  This agreement may be terminated at the end of August 2013, OR if 
CONTRACTOR has completed all work and obligations set forth in this Agreement 
satisfactorily, at the discretion of the CCSD, it may be extended through August 2014. In 
that event, for the 2014 year, all parcel clearing charges must be submitted to the CCSD 
by date specified in Exhibit “B” 2014 schedule. Failure to deliver the parcel clearance 
charges to the CCSD by this date will result in a 10% withholding of all charges that are 
delivered late to the CCSD as liquidated damages, assessed against the CONTRACTOR.  
 
 

46



Rev 05/29/2013 

MISCELLANEOUS: 
 
REMEDIES: The remedies set forth in this Agreement shall not be exclusive but shall be 
cumulative with, and in addition to, all remedies now or hereafter allowed by law or equity. 
 
NO WAIVER:  The waiver of any breach by any party of any provision of this Agreement 
shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach of this 
Agreement. 
 
ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement is specifically not assignable by CONTRACTOR to any 
person or entity. Any assignment or attempt to assign by CONTRACTOR, whether it be 
voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, is void and is a material breach 
of this Agreement giving rise to a right to terminate as set forth in this Agreement. 
 
ATTORNEY FEES: In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute between the parties 
hereto, arising out of or related to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled, in addition to other such relief as may be granted, to a reasonable 
sum as and for attorney fees. 
 
NOTICES:  Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any and all notices or other 
communication required or permitted by this Agreement or by law to be served on or given 
to any party to this agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served and 
given when personally delivered or in lieu of such personal service when deposited in the 
United States mail, first-class postage prepaid to the following address for each respective 
party: 
 
‘CCSD”            “CONTRACTOR” 
General Manager         
Cambria Community Services District     
PO Box 65 
Cambria CA 93428         
 
GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement and all matters relating to this Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of California in force at the time any need for the 
interpretation of this Agreement or any decision or holding concerning this Agreement 
arises. Any action arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be filed in the state court 
in the State of California with jurisdiction over San Luis Obispo County. 
 
BINDING EFFECT: This Agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of 
the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties hereto, but 
nothing in this section shall be construed as consent by CCSD to any assignment of this 
Agreement or an interest in this Agreement. 
 
SEVERABILITY:  Should any provision of this Agreement be held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction or by a legislative or rulemaking act to be either invalid, void or unenforceable, 
the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, unimpaired 
by the holding, legislation or rule. 
 
SOLE AND ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire 
Agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement 
correctly set forth the obligations of the parties hereto to each other as of the date of this 
Agreement. All Agreements or representations respecting the subject matter of this 
Agreement not expressly set forth or referred to in this Agreement are null and void. 

47



Rev 05/29/2013 

 
TIME: Time is expressly declared to be of the essence in this Agreement. 
 
DUE AUTHORITY: The parties hereby represent that the individuals executing this 
Agreement are expressly authorized to do so on and in behalf of the parties. 
 
CONSTRUCTION: The parties agree that each has had an opportunity to have their 
counsel review this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting shall not apply in the interpretation of 
this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits thereto. The captions of the sections are 
for convenience and reference only, and are not intended to be construed to define or limit 
the provisions to which they relate. 
 
AMENDMENTS:  Amendments to this Agreement shall be made only with the mutual 
written consent of all of the parties to this Agreement. 
 
 
Executed on this                 day of                              2013 at Cambria, California. 
 
Attest:      CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT: 
 
 

        _______________________________ 
            Michael Thompson, President 

Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST:          APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
_________________________ 
Kathy A. Choate, District Clerk   Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

48



Rev 05/29/2013 

 
EXHIBIT "A" 

 
LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Contractor's Insurance: The CONTRACTOR shall not commence work under this contract 
until he has obtained all insurance required under this Section and such insurance has 
been approved by the CCSD as to form, amount and carrier. Nor shall the CONTRACTOR 
allow any subcontractor to commence work on his subcontract until similar insurance 
required of the subcontractor has been so obtained and approved. 
 
(a) Workers Compensation Insurance: The CONTRACTOR shall establish and 

maintain, during the life of this contract, workers compensation insurance in a 
minimum amount of one million dollars ($1,000,000) for all employees working 
under this Agreement, and in case any work is sublet, CONTRACTOR shall require 
subcontractor similarly to provide workers compensation insurance. 
CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the CCSD for any damage resulting to it from 
failure of either CONTRACTOR or the subcontractor to take out or maintain such 
insurance. 

 
(b) Commercial General Liability Insurance: The CONTRACTOR shall take out and 

maintain during the life of this contract, such public liability and property damage 
insurance as shall protect the CCSD , its elected and appointed boards, officers, 
agents and employees, CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor performing work 
covered by this Contract from claims for damage for bodily injury including death, 
as well as claims for property damage which may arise from CONTRACTOR's or 
subcontractor's operations under this contract, whether such operations be by the 
CONTRACTOR, or by any subcontractor, or by anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by either CONTRACTOR or subcontractor, and in the minimum amount 
of one million dollars ($1,000,000). 

 
(c) Auto Liability: CONTRACTOR shall possess and maintain auto liability insurance 

(Business Auto Coverage Form) for all vehicles used in the provision of services 
under this Agreement. The minimum amount of auto liability insurance shall be in 
the amount of one million dollars per accident ($1,000,000). 

 
(d) Proof of Coverage of Insurance: CONTRACTOR shall furnish the CCSD upon 

award of bid a Certificate of Insurance and endorsement, which shall contain the 
following: 

 
 "Name as Additional Insured Parties: The Cambria Community Services District, its 

elected and appointed boards, officers, agents and any subcontractor in the 
performance of work for the CCSD." 

 
 (30) Thirty-days prior notice shall be given to the CCSD of any reduction in 

insurance coverage or of insurance cancellation. 
 
(e) Hold Harmless Agreement: CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend at its cost and 

with counsel selected by the CCSD and hold harmless the CCSD and its officers, 
officials, employees and agents from and against all losses, claims, demands, 
payments, suits, actions, recoveries and judgments of every nature and description 
brought or recoverable against it or them by reason of any act, error or omission of 
the CONTRACTOR, his agents or employees, in the performance of the work. 

49



Rev 05/29/2013 

  
EXHIBIT "B" 

 
 

 

 

2013 
FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION PROGRAM  

SCHEDULE 
 
 
 

5/23/2013 Declaration of Public Nuisance 
 

5/24/2013 Notices sent to lot owners  
Lot cutting starts 
 

5/28/2013 Advertise FHFRP Contract 
 

6/13/2013 RFP Deadline To Be Submitted by 4PM  to CCSD Admin Office  
Lot Inspections Start 
 

6/27/2013 Award Contract 
 

7/12/2013 Abatement Deadline 
Final Inspections 
 

7/19/2013 CCSD Contract List for Abatement Completed 
Submit Contract List to Clerk for Board Packet 
 

7/25/2013 CCSD Public Hearing/Contract List for Abatement Considered 
by Board for Approval 
 

7/26/2013 CCSD Contractor Starts Lot Clearing 
 

8/19/2013 CCSD Contractor Deadline 
Final Inspections 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
50



Rev 05/29/2013 

EXHIBIT "C" 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION PROGRAM 
POLICY 2013 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
All parcels that are placed on the Cambria Community Services District annual “Fire 
Hazard Fuel Reduction Program” shall adhere to the following criteria: 
 
All clearance work must be completed by July 12, 2013. If the parcel does not conform to 
the requirements as stated in the notice sent to the property owner, the parcel will go to 
the CCSD’s contract list July 25, 2013. The CCSD’s Contractor will then be directed to 
abate those parcels on the contract list to the following standards; 
 

 Limit leaves, needles, twigs, bark, cones, pods, and chips to 3” in depth.  
 
 Weeds and annual grasses should not exceed 4” in height. Avoid exposing bare 

soil or creating a situation that would encourage erosion. 
 

 Remove Scotch/Irish or other broom type plants, Pampas Grass, Jubata Grass and 
Crocosmia, also known as Fire Weed. Isolated specimens may be left with greater 
that ten (10) feet separation and all dead materials are removed. 

 
 All down and dead trees, tree rounds or limbs within thirty (30) of any structure must 

be removed.  Tree stumps fallen over shall be cut and retain no more than 6 feet of 
the log within this 30 foot zone. 
 

 All down trees beyond 30 feet from any structure twelve (12) inches in diameter or 
greater may remain on the parcel. However, the entire trunk must be completely on 
the ground. Materials less than 12 inches in diameter shall be cut and removed 
from the property.  

 
 Remove ladder vegetation (dead wood) from under trees and shrubs, maintaining 

six (6) feet of vertical clearance for trees greater than twenty (20) feet in height. 
  
 Remove combustible construction debris, trash and rubbish from property.  

 
 Protect seedling pines, oaks and native shrubs by flagging them prior to cutting 

weeds. 
 
 
Other Conditions 
 

 The contractor shall photograph each parcel with a digital camera (as directed by 
the CCSD Fire Department) before and after abatement. Before and after pictures 
shall be taken from the same spot incorporating the same view. The before and 
after pictures shall include all flagged vegetation. Pictures shall include the date and 
the Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) on the picture. The contractor shall provide a 
digital photo file in a format compatible with CCSD software ( CD, thumb drive, etc.) 
as well as hard copies of all pictures. 
 

 All internal combustion powered equipment shall have approved and functional 
spark arresters on the exhaust. 

51



Rev 05/29/2013 

 
 A fire extinguisher (ABC type) of at least 5-pound capacity shall be immediately 

available at the work site. A minimum of 2½ gallons of water must be available for 
vegetation fire extinguishment at all times by portable means. Examples are a 
pressurized water extinguisher, Hudson type pump sprayer or back-pump. 
 

 All abatement work assigned to Cambria CSD Contractor shall begin no later than 
July 26, 2013 and must be completed August 19, 2013. 
 

 All parcels shall be completely abated as prescribed to the property line, street and 
adjoining easements. 
 

 ALL MATERIAL FROM ALL PARCELS SHALL BE HAULED AWAY OR 
APPROVAL WILL BE DENIED, however tree limbs/rounds should not be removed 
from the Cambria area due to Pine Pitch Canker control requirements. 

 
DEBRIS SHALL NOT BE DUMPED ON ADJOINING OR UNCLEARED PORTIONS OF 
LOTS. 
 
ANY EVIDENCE OF ILLEGAL DUMPING WILL BE PROSECUTED TO THE FULLEST 
EXTENT OF THE LAW. 
 
  

52



Rev 05/29/2013 

EXHIBIT "D" 
 

2013 ANNUAL FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION PROGRAM 
 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
That                                                 , as CONTRACTOR, and                                        , as 
Surety, are held and firmly bound hereinafter called Owner, in the sum of Five Thousand 
Dollars ($5,000), for the payment of which sum will and truly to be made, we bind 
ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and 
severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, said CONTRACTOR has been awarded and is about to enter into annexed 
agreement with said Owner to perform all work required under the Bidding Schedule titled; 
 

2013 ANNUAL FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION PROGRAM 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, if said CONTRACTOR performs all the requirements of said 
agreement as required on his/her part, at the times and in the manner specified therein, 
then this contract shall remain in full force and effect; if the CONTRACTOR fails to fulfill 
this contract, this obligation shall be null and void. 
 
PROVIDED, that any alterations in the work to be done or the materials to be furnished, 
which may be made pursuant to the terms of said agreement, shall not in any way release 
said CONTRACTOR or said Surety hereunder, nor shall any extensions of time granted 
under the provisions of said agreement release either said CONTRACTOR or said Surety, 
and notice of such alterations of extensions of the agreement is hereby waived by said 
Surety. 
 
SIGNED AND SEALED, this                 day of                   , 2013. 
 
 
                                       (SEAL)                                                              (SEAL)                        
 Contractor      Surety 
 
 
BY:                                           BY:                                                      
 Signature      Signature 
 
(Seal and Notary Acknowledgment of Surety) 
 
 
 
Note: A cash deposit of $5,000.00 or Assignment of a Financial Instrument 
acceptable to the CCSD may be substituted in lieu of a Faithful Performance Bond.  
  
**The Faithful Performance Bond may be released upon satisfactory completion of 
the contract at the sole discretion of the Fire Chief.” 
 
  

53



Rev 05/29/2013 

EXHIBIT “E” 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION PROGRAM - 2013 
BID PROPOSAL FORM 

 
SCHEDULE OF PROPOSED CHARGES: 
 
The bidder shall set forth for each item of work, in clearly legible figures, a unit price for the item in 
the respective spaces provided for this purpose.   
 
A. Maximum charge for moving equipment onto a lot:  $__________ 
 
  
 
B. Type of equipment and cost per hour, including operator: 
 
 1. Tractor with mower        $__________ 
 
 2. High wheel mower        $__________ 
 
 3. Weed-eater         $__________ 
 
 4. Chainsaw          $__________ 
 
 5. Other equipment; (list with charges):  
 
  
 
  
  
 6. Dump and haul fee (charge by cubic yard) $__________ 
 
C. Laborer charge (per person/per hour)    $__________ 
 
D. Pictures – before and after       $__________ 
 
I the undersigned, declare that I am authorized to submit a proposal in behalf of the stated 
business, have carefully examined Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C” and hereby proposes to do all the 
work necessary to complete the project in accordance with said provisions, policies and regulations 
stated in the attached Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Agreement: 
 
NAME OF PROPOSER:                                                                                                             
 
ADDRESS:                                                                                                                                
 
SIGNATURE OF PROPOSER:                                                                                                    
 
TITLE:                                                                                                                                       
 
DATE:                                                                                                                                      

54



RESOLUTION 20-2013 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING AWARD OF THE 2013 

FIRE HAZARD FUEL REDUCTION PROGRAM CONTRACT 
 

WHEREAS, as part of its annual program to abate dangerous weeds and vegetation, 
the Cambria Community Services District conducts an annual Fire Hazard Fuel 
Reduction Program (FHFRP) in accordance with the provisions of Health and Safety 
Code Sections 14875 et seq.; and 
 
WHEREAS, under the FHFRP, lots on which the nuisance fire hazard vegetation has 
not been removed by the owners are to be cleared and abated by the Cambria 
Community Services District Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Program contractor; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to select a contractor for the 2012 FHFRP a Request for Proposals 
(RFP) was advertised and the  proposals that were submitted were evaluated in 
accordance with the criteria set forth in the RFP and contract documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, based upon that evaluation the contractor, Bushwacker 1, has been 
selected as the lowest most responsive proposal; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services 
District Does Hereby Resolve as follows: 
 

1. Authorizes and approves a contract for the 2013 Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction 
Program with Bushwacker 1, which contract is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
2. The General Manager is authorized to execute the contract with Bushwacker 1 

on behalf of the Cambria Community Services District. 
 

3. The General Manager is authorized to make minor revisions to the contract as 
necessary that do not impact the price and term. 

 
Ayes:  
Noes: 
Absent:  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of June 2013. 
 

    _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson, President 

Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
_________________________ 
Kathy A. Choate, District Clerk  Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 

 
55



56



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.D. 
       
FROM: Bob Gresens, District Engineer  
 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Consideration to Approve an Easement 
        Deed to Pacific Gas and Electric   
        Company on APN Number   
        013-151-045 associated with   
        completion of the Main Street Bridge 
        Replacement Project   
        
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve and authorize execution of the attached 
Easement Deed to Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E)  on APN number 013-151-045,  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
No costs will be incurred by the CCSD as a result of the Easement Deed.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As part of the County’s project to replace the Main Street Bridge over Santa Rosa Creek (the 
“Project”), PG&E is required to reconfigure an existing power distribution pole and its 
supporting guy wires. As a result, PG&E needs to acquire an easement of approximately 250 
square feet in area from the CCSD on parcel APN 013-151-045, which is at the intersection of 
Main Street and Santa Creek Road. The proposed Easement Deed and its Exhibit A, legal 
description, is attached, as well as Exhibit B, which is PG&E’s grant of easement disclosure 
statement. 
 
The County is lead agency on the Main Street Bridge Replacement project and its 
construction. This bridge project replaces a dilapidated bridge, while providing vital access to 
Cambria, including the community’s schools and businesses. Given the importance of the Main 
Street Bridge Project to the community, staff is recommending approval of the Easement Deed 
to PG&E in order to facilitate the Project. 
 
Attachments: Exhibit A - Easement Deed to PG&E, including Attachment A, legal description 
  Exhibit B – Grant of Easement Disclosure Statement. 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 

57



Distribution Easement (Rev. 01/11)  
  

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND RETURN TO:  

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY  

Land Services Office  

4325 South Higuera Street  

San Luis Obispo, CA  93401  

Location: City/Uninc ____________________________  

Recording  Fee $_______________________________  

Document Transfer Tax $ _________________________  

[  ] This is a conveyance where the consideration and  

 value is less than $100.00 (R&T 11911)  

[  ] Computed on Full Value of Property Conveyed, or  

[  ] Computed on Full Value Less Liens & Encumbrances  

 Remaining at Time of Sale.  

___________________________________________________  

Signature of declarant or agent determining tax  (SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER'S USE ONLY) 

LD# 2227-08- EASEMENT DEED 
 

 

 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a public agency, 

 

 

hereinafter called Grantor, hereby grants to PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a 

California corporation, hereinafter called Grantee, the right from time to time to construct, reconstruct, 

install, inspect, maintain, replace, remove, and use facilities of the type hereinafter specified, together 

with a right of way therefor, within the easement area as hereinafter set forth, and also ingress thereto 

and egress therefrom, over and across the lands of Grantor situate in the County of San Luis Obispo, 
State of California, described as follows: 
 

APN 013-151-045 

Those portions of Lot 1 and the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 

Section 26, and Lot 4 and Lot 5 of Section 23, all in Township 27 South, Range 8 

East, MDM described as PARCEL 1 in the Certificate of Compliance recorded as 

Document Number 1998-087216, San Luis Obispo County Records.  

Said facilities and easement area are described as follows: 

Such anchors, guy wires and cables, guy stubs, and fixtures as Grantee deems 

necessary located within the strip of land described as follows: 

 

See Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof.

58



 Distribution Easement (Rev. 01/11) 

Grantor further grants to Grantee the right, from time to time, to trim or to cut down any and all trees 

and brush now or hereafter within said easement area, and shall have the further right, from time to 

time, to trim and cut down trees and brush along each side of said easement area which now or 

hereafter in the opinion of Grantee may interfere with or be a hazard to the facilities installed 

hereunder, or as Grantee deems necessary to comply with applicable state or federal regulations. 

Grantor shall not erect or construct any building or other structure or drill or operate any well within 

said easement area. 

Grantor further grants to Grantee the right to assign to another public utility as defined in Section 216 

of the California Public Utilities Code the right to install, inspect, maintain, replace, remove and use 

communications facilities within said easement area (including ingress thereto and egress therefrom).  

Grantor acknowledges that they have read the “Grant of Easement Disclosure Statement”, Exhibit 

“B”, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

The provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and bind the successors and assigns of the 

respective parties hereto. 

Dated ______________________, 20____. 

 Cambria Community Services District, a 

04/25/13 public agency 

Los Padres Division  

San Luis Obispo Land Services Office  

Electric Distribution  

MDM, T27S, R8E  

Sec. 23, SW¼ of SE¼   

FERC: N/A ______________________________________________ 

PG&E Dwg. #: Exhibit By: 

Plat #: GG-23-01  

Affected LD: N/A  

Cross Ref LD: N/A  

Interest: 03, 06, 43  

SBE: N/A  

PM: 30968692  

JCN: N/A  

County: San Luis Obispo  

Utility Notice #: N/A  

851 Approval Application # __________ ______________________________________________ 

851 Approval Decision # _____________ By: 

trp/cjm  

L# 51836.doc  

  
 

59



Distribution Easement (Rev. 01/11) 

 

State of California 

County of    ) 

 

 

On __________________________, before me,  , Notary Public, 
 Here insert name and title of the officer 

personally appeared   

 , 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in 

his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the 

person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

            (Seal) 
Signature of Notary Public 

 

 

 

CAPACITY CLAIMED BY SIGNER 

 

[  ]  Individual(s) signing for oneself/themselves 

 

[  ]  Corporate Officer(s) of the above named corporation(s) 

 

[  ]  Trustee(s) of the above named Trust(s) 

 

[  ]  Partner(s) of the above named Partnership(s) 

 

[  ]  Attorney(s)-in-Fact of the above named Principal(s) 

 

[  ]  Other        

 

       

60



61



62



REV 08/2012 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company                                

          

                  EXHIBIT “B” 
 

GRANT OF EASEMENT DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

 
 
This Disclosure Statement will assist you in evaluating the request for granting an easement to 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) to accommodate a utility service extension to PG&E’s 
applicant.  Please read this disclosure carefully before signing the Grant of Easement. 
 

 You are under no obligation or threat of condemnation by PG&E to grant this easement. 
 
 The granting of this easement is an accommodation to PG&E’s applicant requesting the 

extension of PG&E utility facilities to the applicant’s property or project.  Because this 
easement is an accommodation for a service extension to a single customer or group of 
customers, PG&E is not authorized to purchase any such easement.  
 
 By granting this easement to PG&E, the easement area may be used to serve additional 

customers in the area.  Installation of any proposed facilities outside of this easement area 
will require an additional easement. 
 
 Removal and/or pruning of trees or other vegetation on your property may be necessary 

for the installation of PG&E facilities.  You have the option of having PG&E’s contractors 
perform this work on your property, if available, or granting permission to PG&E’s 
applicant or the applicant’s contractor to perform this work.  Additionally, in order to 
comply with California fire laws and safety orders, PG&E or its contractors will 
periodically perform vegetation maintenance activities on your property as provided for in 
this grant of easement in order to maintain proper clearances from energized electric lines or 
other facilities.  
 
 The description of the easement location where PG&E utility facilities are to be 

installed across your property must be satisfactory to you. 
 
 The California Public Utilities Commission has authorized PG&E’s applicant to 

perform the installation of certain utility facilities for utility service.  In addition to granting 
this easement to PG&E, your consent may be requested by the applicant, or applicant’s 
contractor, to work on your property.  Upon completion of the applicant’s installation, the 
utility facilities will be inspected by PG&E.  When the facility installation is determined to 
be acceptable the facilities will be conveyed to PG&E by its applicant. 

 

By signing the Grant of Easement, you are acknowledging that you have read this disclosure and 

understand that you are voluntarily granting the easement to PG&E. Please return the signed and 

notarized Grant of Easement with this Disclosure Statement attached to PG&E.  The duplicate copy 

of the Grant of Easement and this Disclosure Statement is for your records. 

63



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.E. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, Admin Services Officer  
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Consider Adoption of Resolution   
        25-2013 Approving Senior Water  
        Systems Operator Revised   
        Salary Range  
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Adopt Resolution 25-2013 approving the Senior Water Systems Operator revised salary range 
of $4,911 - $5969 and authorizing  the General Manager to grant the Senior Water Systems 
Operator an additional three vacation days annually.. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The fiscal impact for the fiscal year 2013/2014 is estimated at $8340 for the salary increase 
and associated payroll taxes and benefits.  The three vacation days are a value of $808.          
 

DISCUSSION: 
With the implementation of the Utility Department reorganization, which was adopted by the 
Board of Directors in May of 2010, and fully implemented in April 2013, we identified a need for 
redundancy of the Treatment 3 licensure within the Water Department.  As a result, at the May 
2013 meeting we asked the board to approve the Water Systems Operator (T3/D2) position 
and salary range.  At that time we also indicated that we anticipated bringing an item to the 
Board to revise the Senior Water System Operator’s salary range.  Accordingly, we are now 
asking the Board of Directors to approve a revised salary range for that position, which will 
result in   a slight increase for the Senior Water Systems Operator.   
 
The Senior Water Systems Operator position will serve as the Chief Plant Operator, directing 
Water Department operations, including scheduling and operators in both the distribution and 
treatment areas.  Section 3.2 of the SEIU and Management and Confidential Employees 
Payment and Compensation Plan provides that employees in certain positions, including 
managerial, supervisory or professional positions, may be entitled to additional days of 
vacations as provided by specific Board action. Given the responsibilities of the Senior Water 
Systems Operator position, we are also asking the Board of provide that the General Manager 
is authorized to grant this position an additional three vacation days annually. 
 
Attachments: Resolution 25-2013 

Exhibit “A” SEIU MOU Appendix “K” Revised Salary chart (includes the 1.65% 
COLA) 

   
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON____ BAHRINGER ____ CLIFT____ RICE ___ ROBINETTE___ 

64



 

 

RESOLUTION 25-2013 
JUNE 27, 2013 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
APPROVING AMENDED SENIOR WATER OPERATOR 

SYSTEMS OPERATOR SALARY RANGE 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Cambria Community Services 
District (“District”) has the authority set salary scales/ ranges; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District Board desires to amend the Senior Water Operator 
Systems Operator and amend Appendix “K” of the Memorandum of 
Understanding (“MOU”) with the Service Employees International Union (“SEIU”) 
Local 620 to establish an amended salary range for the position.     
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services 
District does hereby resolve as follows: 
 

1. That the above recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.  

 
2. That Appendix K of the MOU for SEIU Local 620 is hereby 

amended to establish a salary change for the Senior Water 
Systems Operator position, as more particularly set forth in 
Exhibit “A”, which Exhibit is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference.   
 

3. In accordance with Section 3.2 of the Payment and 
Compensation Plan for SEIU and Management and Confidential 
Employees the General Manager is authorized to provide up to 
three (3) additional vacation days annually to the Senior Water 
Systems Operator.   
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of June 2013. 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson President  

Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Kathy A. Choate    Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk     District Counsel 

65



66



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.F. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Monique Madrid, Admin Services Officer  
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Consider Adoption of Resolution   
        26-2013 Approving Revised Facilities  
        and Resources Supervisor Salary  
        Range   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

Adopt Resolution 26-2013 approving revised Facilities and Resources Supervisor Salary 
Range of $ 5,484 - $6,666 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The fiscal impact for fiscal year 2013/2014 is estimated at $13,823.   
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Facilities and Resources Supervisor is responsible for the supervision and management of 
all District real property, buildings, grounds, open space and recreations facilities, as well as 
the habitat and environmental protection.  This salary increase is recommended in order to 
move the salary range closer to other management employee salaries as well as recognition of 
outstanding performance.  
 
Therefore, we are recommending adoption of a revised salary range for the Facilities and 
Resources Supervisor.   
 
Attachments: Resolution 26-2013 

Exhibit “A” Management and Confidential Employee Salary chart FY 2013/2014.  
(including a 1.65% COLA) 

  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON____ BAHRINGER ____ CLIFT____ RICE ___ ROBINETTE___ 

67



 

 

RESOLUTION 26-2013 
JUNE 27, 2013 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
APPROVING REVISED FACILITIES AND RESOURCES  

SUPERVISOR SALARY RANGE 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Cambria Community Services 
District (“District”) has the authority to set salary scales/ ranges; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District Board desires to amend the Payment and Compensation 
Plan for the Management and Confidential Exempt Employee Salary Chart for 
the Facilities and Resources Supervisor Salary Range (attached as Exhibit “A”, 
which Exhibit is incorporated herein by reference). 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services 
District does hereby resolve as follows: 
 

1. That the above recitals are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.  
 
 

2. Approves the Salary Range for the Facilities and Resources 
Supervisor attached as Exhibit “A”, which Exhibit is incorporated 
herein by reference 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of June 2013. 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson President  

Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
Kathy A. Choate    Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk     District Counsel 

68



69



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.G. 
 
FROM: Alleyne LaBossiere, Finance Manager  
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Consideration of Adopting Resolution  
        27-2013 in Support of Preservation of  
        Tax-Exempt Financing  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 27-2013 to support the 
preservation of the Federal tax-exempt municipal financing authorizing the Board President to 
send letters of support on this position to Senators Diane Feinstein and Barbara Boxer as well 
as to Congresswoman Lois Capps. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact in adopting Resolution 27-2013.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
The United States Congress, specifically, the Senate Finance Committee is discussing 
repealing or capping the Municipal Tax Exemption currently available to investors on municipal 
bond interest.  The Government Finance Officers’ Association estimates that if the exemption 
had been in effect in the last ten years, in would have cost state and local governments $495 
billion in additional interest costs for the $1.65 trillion in bonds used to improve state and local 
infrastructure improvements.  If the municipal bond interest exemption had been capped at 28 
percent, as being discussed by Congress, the additional cost to state and local governments 
would have been $173 billion in additional interest paid. 
 
It is worthwhile to note that, according to the Internal Revenue Service, 57% of the applicable 
tax-exempt interest is earned by investors over the age of 65 and 52% was paid to individuals 
with income under $250,000. 
 
Attachments:  Letter to Senator Diane Feinstein 
   Letter to Senator Barbara Boxer 
   Letter to Congresswoman Lois Capps 
   Resolution 26-2013 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 

70



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

DIRECTORS: OFFICERS:
MICHAEL THOMPSON, President  JEROME D. GRUBER, General Manager
JIM BAHRINGER, Vice President KATHY A. CHOATE, District Clerk 
MURIL N. CLIFT TIMOTHY J. CARMEL, District Counsel 
AMANDA RICE 
GAIL ROBINETTE 

 
1316 Tamsen Street, Suite 201  •  P.O. Box 65  •  Cambria CA  93428 

Telephone (805) 927-6223  •  Facsimile (805) 927-5584 

 

 
June 27, 2013 
 
The Honorable Senator Feinstein  
United States Senate  
331 Hart Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20510  
FAX: 202-228-3954 
 
RE: Preservation of the Municipal Tax Exemption 
 
Dear Senator Feinstein:  
 
As Congress moves forward with continued efforts to reduce the federal budget deficit and advance federal 
tax reform legislation, I am writing on behalf of the Cambria Community Services District to urge your 
support for maintaining the federal tax exemption on municipal bond interest. The tax exemption has been a 
cornerstone of state and local infrastructure development for over 100 years, and is responsible for 
financing a majority of the nation’s infrastructure. 
 
In Cambria, the tax exemption on municipal bonds has contributed to the advancement and completion of a 
great number of critical infrastructure projects, the most recent being a $2,245,000 upgrade to the CCSD’s 
Wastewater Treatment System and a $3,795,000 upgrade to the CCSD’s Water and Wastewater Treatment 
System.  These systems are critical for providing clean water to the citizens of Cambria. 
 
The federal tax exemption on municipal bonds was included when the country’s income tax code was 
promulgated in 1913. Through the tax-exemption, the federal government continues to provide critical 
support for the federal, state and local partnership that develops and maintains essential infrastructure, 
which it cannot practically replicate by other means. On average, state and local governments issue nearly 
10,000 bonds a year totaling $300 billion. This has allowed state and local governments to finance more 
than $1.65 trillion in infrastructure investment over the last decade through the tax exempt market. 
 
Our citizens, communities and public, private and non-profit sectors benefit in many ways from the issuance 
of these bonds, as they are used to build and maintain schools to support an educated workforce, and to 
build our roads, public transportation systems and airports, all of which are essential for supporting 
commerce. They also help to address the country’s water infrastructure, public utilities, health care and 
affordable housing needs, as well as provide public safety infrastructure that ensures local and national 
security. These financings are approved by elected bodies at the state and local levels or by the voters 
themselves for specific long-term projects, not to support general government functions, such as 
maintaining employees or keeping the lights on. 
 
As the federal government continues to develop policies to reduce the deficit, several proposals have been 
offered that would replace, limit, or eliminate the tax exempt status of municipal bond interest. To support 
these proposals it has been suggested that those who truly benefit from the municipal tax exemption are 
wealthy investors. These claims mischaracterize municipal investors and the true beneficiaries of municipal 
bonds, who are –  

71



 

 

 state and local governments who need the support of investors to finance critical infrastructure;  

 taxpayers across the country who depend on this infrastructure for reliable transportation systems, 
schools, public health facilities, energy, clean water and affordable housing;  

 the federal government, who is able to provide a small tax benefit for a return of billions of dollars of 
infrastructure; and  

 investors who buy bonds for many reasons, including the safe nature of these financial products.  
 

It is worth noting that 72.4 percent of the total outstanding muni debt is held by individual investors, either 
directly or through mutual funds and money market funds (Source - 2010 Thomson Reuters). 2010 IRS data 
indicates that 57 percent of tax exempt income is reported by earners over the age of 65. These are 
individuals who are largely on fixed incomes, expecting the secure return on investment that municipal 
bonds provide. Municipal bonds are the second safest investment, aside from U.S. Treasuries, with state 
and local governments having nearly a zero default rate. 2010 IRS data also indicates that 52 percent of all 
bond interest paid to individuals went to those with incomes of less than $250,000. Investors in municipal 
bonds are those who want to support the long-term infrastructure needs of their communities through a 
direct investment that cannot be replaced by any direct funding source or entity, including the federal, state 
or local governments. 
 

Proposals to reduce or repeal the tax exemption would have severely detrimental impacts on national 
infrastructure development and the municipal bond market, raising costs for state and local borrowers and 
creating uncertainty for investors. For example, it is estimated that if the proposal to cap the exemption on 
municipal bonds at 28 percent had been in place over the last 10 years it would have cost state and local 
governments an additional $173 billion in interest costs. Total repeal of the exemption over that time would 
have cost state and local governments over $495 billion in additional interest costs. Given the severe 
budget constraints that state and local governments have faced since the national financial crisis of 2008, it 
is very likely that many of the infrastructure projects funded through tax exempt bonds would not have been 
possible. 
 

Speaking specifically to the impacts on Cambria Community Services District, these proposals would 
significantly increase the costs of future projects potentially causing delays in the improvements and 
upgrades to the CCSD’s water and wastewater systems.  The cost increase would impact the CCSD’s 
ratepayers, many of whom are elderly and are on fixed incomes.    
 

Proposals to cap or repeal the exemption would also introduce uncertainty into the municipal market, 
causing investors to fear additional federal intervention in the market where none has existed for the past 
100 years. Ultimately these investor concerns translate into demands for higher yields from and increased 
costs to state and local governments. If these entities are unable to satisfy investor yield demands, then 
either needed infrastructure projects will not move forward or the costs of these projects will be passed on 
directly to state and local tax and rate payers. 
 

The municipal tax exemption has a long history of success, having been maintained through two world wars 
and the Great Depression, as well as the recent Great Recession, and it continues to finance the majority of 
our nation’s infrastructure needs for state and local governments of all sizes when no other source exists to 
do so. We cannot afford to abandon the great success of this important financing instrument, especially as 
state and local governments continue to recover from the economic downturn. 
 

Thank you for your consideration of this important request. I look forward to working with you to preserve 
this irreplaceable infrastructure financing resource. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Michael Thompson, President 
Board of Directors 

72



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

DIRECTORS: OFFICERS:
MICHAEL THOMPSON, President  JEROME D. GRUBER, General Manager
JIM BAHRINGER, Vice President KATHY A. CHOATE, District Clerk 
MURIL N. CLIFT TIMOTHY J. CARMEL, District Counsel 
AMANDA RICE 
GAIL ROBINETTE 

 
1316 Tamsen Street, Suite 201  •  P.O. Box 65  •  Cambria CA  93428 

Telephone (805) 927-6223  •  Facsimile (805) 927-5584 

 

 
June 27, 2013 
 
The Honorable Senator Boxer  
United States Senate  
112 Hart Senate Office Building 
Washington, DC 20510  
 
RE: Preservation of the Municipal Tax Exemption 
 
Dear Senator Boxer:  
 
As Congress moves forward with continued efforts to reduce the federal budget deficit and advance federal 
tax reform legislation, I am writing on behalf of the Cambria Community Services District to urge your 
support for maintaining the federal tax exemption on municipal bond interest. The tax exemption has been a 
cornerstone of state and local infrastructure development for over 100 years, and is responsible for 
financing a majority of the nation’s infrastructure. 
 
In Cambria, the tax exemption on municipal bonds has contributed to the advancement and completion of a 
great number of critical infrastructure projects, the most recent being a $2,245,000 upgrade to the CCSD’s 
Wastewater Treatment System and a $3,795,000 upgrade to the CCSD’s Water and Wastewater Treatment 
System.  These systems are critical for providing clean water to the citizens of Cambria. 
 
The federal tax exemption on municipal bonds was included when the country’s income tax code was 
promulgated in 1913. Through the tax-exemption, the federal government continues to provide critical 
support for the federal, state and local partnership that develops and maintains essential infrastructure, 
which it cannot practically replicate by other means. On average, state and local governments issue nearly 
10,000 bonds a year totaling $300 billion. This has allowed state and local governments to finance more 
than $1.65 trillion in infrastructure investment over the last decade through the tax exempt market. 
 
Our citizens, communities and public, private and non-profit sectors benefit in many ways from the issuance 
of these bonds, as they are used to build and maintain schools to support an educated workforce, and to 
build our roads, public transportation systems and airports, all of which are essential for supporting 
commerce. They also help to address the country’s water infrastructure, public utilities, health care and 
affordable housing needs, as well as provide public safety infrastructure that ensures local and national 
security. These financings are approved by elected bodies at the state and local levels or by the voters 
themselves for specific long-term projects, not to support general government functions, such as 
maintaining employees or keeping the lights on. 
 
As the federal government continues to develop policies to reduce the deficit, several proposals have been 
offered that would replace, limit, or eliminate the tax exempt status of municipal bond interest. To support 
these proposals it has been suggested that those who truly benefit from the municipal tax exemption are 
wealthy investors. These claims mischaracterize municipal investors and the true beneficiaries of municipal 
bonds, who are –  
 

73



 

 

 state and local governments who need the support of investors to finance critical infrastructure;  

 taxpayers across the country who depend on this infrastructure for reliable transportation systems, 
schools, public health facilities, energy, clean water and affordable housing;  

 the federal government, who is able to provide a small tax benefit for a return of billions of dollars of 
infrastructure; and  

 investors who buy bonds for many reasons, including the safe nature of these financial products.  
 

It is worth noting that 72.4 percent of the total outstanding muni debt is held by individual investors, either 
directly or through mutual funds and money market funds (Source - 2010 Thomson Reuters). 2010 IRS data 
indicates that 57 percent of tax exempt income is reported by earners over the age of 65. These are 
individuals who are largely on fixed incomes, expecting the secure return on investment that municipal 
bonds provide. Municipal bonds are the second safest investment, aside from U.S. Treasuries, with state 
and local governments having nearly a zero default rate. 2010 IRS data also indicates that 52 percent of all 
bond interest paid to individuals went to those with incomes of less than $250,000. Investors in municipal 
bonds are those who want to support the long-term infrastructure needs of their communities through a 
direct investment that cannot be replaced by any direct funding source or entity, including the federal, state 
or local governments. 
 

Proposals to reduce or repeal the tax exemption would have severely detrimental impacts on national 
infrastructure development and the municipal bond market, raising costs for state and local borrowers and 
creating uncertainty for investors. For example, it is estimated that if the proposal to cap the exemption on 
municipal bonds at 28 percent had been in place over the last 10 years it would have cost state and local 
governments an additional $173 billion in interest costs. Total repeal of the exemption over that time would 
have cost state and local governments over $495 billion in additional interest costs. Given the severe 
budget constraints that state and local governments have faced since the national financial crisis of 2008, it 
is very likely that many of the infrastructure projects funded through tax exempt bonds would not have been 
possible. 
 

Speaking specifically to the impacts on Cambria Community Services District, these proposals would 
significantly increase the costs of future projects potentially causing delays in the improvements and 
upgrades to the CCSD’s water and wastewater systems.  The cost increase would impact the CCSD’s 
ratepayers, many of whom are elderly and are on fixed incomes.    
 

Proposals to cap or repeal the exemption would also introduce uncertainty into the municipal market, 
causing investors to fear additional federal intervention in the market where none has existed for the past 
100 years. Ultimately these investor concerns translate into demands for higher yields from and increased 
costs to state and local governments. If these entities are unable to satisfy investor yield demands, then 
either needed infrastructure projects will not move forward or the costs of these projects will be passed on 
directly to state and local tax and rate payers. 
 

The municipal tax exemption has a long history of success, having been maintained through two world wars 
and the Great Depression, as well as the recent Great Recession, and it continues to finance the majority of 
our nation’s infrastructure needs for state and local governments of all sizes when no other source exists to 
do so. We cannot afford to abandon the great success of this important financing instrument, especially as 
state and local governments continue to recover from the economic downturn. 
 

Thank you for your consideration of this important request. I look forward to working with you to preserve 
this irreplaceable infrastructure financing resource. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Michael Thompson, President 
Board of Directors 

74



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

DIRECTORS: OFFICERS:
MICHAEL THOMPSON, President  JEROME D. GRUBER, General Manager
JIM BAHRINGER, Vice President KATHY A. CHOATE, District Clerk 
MURIL N. CLIFT TIMOTHY J. CARMEL, District Counsel 
AMANDA RICE 
GAIL ROBINETTE 

 
1316 Tamsen Street, Suite 201  •  P.O. Box 65  •  Cambria CA  93428 

Telephone (805) 927-6223  •  Facsimile (805) 927-5584 

 

 
June 27, 2013 
 
The Honorable Congresswoman Capps  
U.S. House of Representatives  
2231 Rayburn House Office Building  
Washington, DC 20515  
FAX: 202-225-5632 
 
RE: Preservation of the Municipal Tax Exemption 
 
Dear Congresswoman Capps:  
 
As Congress moves forward with continued efforts to reduce the federal budget deficit and advance federal 
tax reform legislation, I am writing on behalf of the Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) to urge 
your support for maintaining the federal tax exemption on municipal bond interest. The tax exemption has 
been a cornerstone of state and local infrastructure development for over 100 years, and is responsible for 
financing a majority of the nation’s infrastructure. 
 
In Cambria, the tax exemption on municipal bonds has contributed to the advancement and completion of a 
great number of critical infrastructure projects, the most recent being a $2,245,000 upgrade to the CCSD’s 
Wastewater Treatment System and a $3,795,000 upgrade to the CCSD’s Water and Wastewater Treatment 
System.  These systems are critical for providing clean water to the citizens of Cambria. 
 
The federal tax exemption on municipal bonds was included when the country’s income tax code was 
promulgated in 1913. Through the tax-exemption, the federal government continues to provide critical 
support for the federal, state and local partnership that develops and maintains essential infrastructure, 
which it cannot practically replicate by other means. On average, state and local governments issue nearly 
10,000 bonds a year totaling $300 billion. This has allowed state and local governments to finance more 
than $1.65 trillion in infrastructure investment over the last decade through the tax exempt market. 
 
Our citizens, communities and public, private and non-profit sectors benefit in many ways from the issuance 
of these bonds, as they are used to build and maintain schools to support an educated workforce, and to 
build our roads, public transportation systems and airports, all of which are essential for supporting 
commerce. They also help to address the country’s water infrastructure, public utilities, health care and 
affordable housing needs, as well as provide public safety infrastructure that ensures local and national 
security. These financings are approved by elected bodies at the state and local levels or by the voters 
themselves for specific long-term projects, not to support general government functions, such as 
maintaining employees or keeping the lights on. 
 
As the federal government continues to develop policies to reduce the deficit, several proposals have been 
offered that would replace, limit, or eliminate the tax exempt status of municipal bond interest. To support 
these proposals it has been suggested that those who truly benefit from the municipal tax exemption are 
wealthy investors. These claims mischaracterize municipal investors and the true beneficiaries of municipal 
bonds, who are –  

75



 

 

 state and local governments who need the support of investors to finance critical infrastructure;  

 taxpayers across the country who depend on this infrastructure for reliable transportation systems, 
schools, public health facilities, energy, clean water and affordable housing;  

 the federal government, who is able to provide a small tax benefit for a return of billions of dollars of 
infrastructure; and  

 investors who buy bonds for many reasons, including the safe nature of these financial products.  
 

It is worth noting that 72.4 percent of the total outstanding muni debt is held by individual investors, either 
directly or through mutual funds and money market funds (Source - 2010 Thomson Reuters). 2010 IRS data 
indicates that 57 percent of tax exempt income is reported by earners over the age of 65. These are 
individuals who are largely on fixed incomes, expecting the secure return on investment that municipal 
bonds provide. Municipal bonds are the second safest investment, aside from U.S. Treasuries, with state 
and local governments having nearly a zero default rate. 2010 IRS data also indicates that 52 percent of all 
bond interest paid to individuals went to those with incomes of less than $250,000. Investors in municipal 
bonds are those who want to support the long-term infrastructure needs of their communities through a 
direct investment that cannot be replaced by any direct funding source or entity, including the federal, state 
or local governments. 
 

Proposals to reduce or repeal the tax exemption would have severely detrimental impacts on national 
infrastructure development and the municipal bond market, raising costs for state and local borrowers and 
creating uncertainty for investors. For example, it is estimated that if the proposal to cap the exemption on 
municipal bonds at 28 percent had been in place over the last 10 years it would have cost state and local 
governments an additional $173 billion in interest costs. Total repeal of the exemption over that time would 
have cost state and local governments over $495 billion in additional interest costs. Given the severe 
budget constraints that state and local governments have faced since the national financial crisis of 2008, it 
is very likely that many of the infrastructure projects funded through tax exempt bonds would not have been 
possible. 
 

Speaking specifically to the impacts on Cambria Community Services District, these proposals would 
significantly increase the costs of future projects potentially causing delays in the improvements and 
upgrades to the CCSD’s water and wastewater systems.  The cost increase would impact the CCSD’s 
ratepayers, many of whom are elderly and are on fixed incomes.    
 

Proposals to cap or repeal the exemption would also introduce uncertainty into the municipal market, 
causing investors to fear additional federal intervention in the market where none has existed for the past 
100 years. Ultimately these investor concerns translate into demands for higher yields from and increased 
costs to state and local governments. If these entities are unable to satisfy investor yield demands, then 
either needed infrastructure projects will not move forward or the costs of these projects will be passed on 
directly to state and local tax and rate payers. 
 

The municipal tax exemption has a long history of success, having been maintained through two world wars 
and the Great Depression, as well as the recent Great Recession, and it continues to finance the majority of 
our nation’s infrastructure needs for state and local governments of all sizes when no other source exists to 
do so. We cannot afford to abandon the great success of this important financing instrument, especially as 
state and local governments continue to recover from the economic downturn. 
 

Thank you for your consideration of this important request. I look forward to working with you to preserve 
this irreplaceable infrastructure financing resource. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Michael Thompson, President 
Board of Directors 

76



RESOLUTION 27-2013 
JUNE 27, 2013 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY 

SERVICES DISTRICT IN SUPPORT OF THE PRESERVATION OF TAX-EXEMPT 
FINANCING 

 
WHEREAS, tax-exempt municipal bonds are the primary means by which state and 
local governments finance three quarters of the critical infrastructure of our nation, 
including roads, bridges, hospitals, schools, and utility systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, through the tax exemption, the federal government continues to provide 
critical support for the federal, state and local partnership that develops and maintains 
essential infrastructure, which it cannot practically replicate by other means; and 
 
WHEREAS, the municipal tax exemption has enabled state and local governments to 
finance more than $1.65 trillion in infrastructure investment over the last decade; and 
 
WHEREAS, this tax exemption is part of a more than century-long system of reciprocal 
immunity under which owners of federal bonds are, in turn, not required to pay state and 
local income tax on the interest they receive from federal bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, municipalities benefit from this tax exemption through substantial savings 
on the interest cost of borrowed money; and 
 
WHEREAS, tax exempt bonds benefit state and local governments who need the 
support of investors to finance critical infrastructure, taxpayers across the country who 
depend on this infrastructure for reliable transportation systems, schools, public health 
facilities, energy, clean water and affordable housing, the federal government, who gets 
quite a bargain on their partnership with state and local government to provide the 
nation's infrastructure through the exemption; and investors who buy bonds for many 
reasons, including the safe nature of these financial products; and 
 
WHEREAS, municipal bonds are the second safest investment, aside from U.S. 
Treasuries, with state and local governments having nearly a zero default rate; and 
 
WHEREAS, 72.4 percent of the total outstanding muni debt is held by individual 
investors, either directly or through mutual funds and money market funds (Source - 
2010 Thomson Reuters); and 
 
WHEREAS, Congress and the President have proposed legislation to reduce or repeal 
the tax exemption on municipal bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, these proposals to reduce or repeal the tax exemption would have severely 
detrimental impacts on national infrastructure development and the municipal market, 

77



raising costs for state and local borrowers and creating uncertainty for investors; and 
 
WHEREAS, if the proposal to cap the exemption on municipal bonds at 28 percent had 
been in place over the last 10 years it would have cost state and local governments an 
additional $173 billion in interest costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, total repeal of the exemption over the last decade would have cost state 
and local governments over $495 billion in additional interest costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the municipal tax exemption has a long history of success, having been 
maintained through two world wars and the Great Depression, as well as the recent 
Great Recession, and it continues to finance the majority of our nation’s infrastructure 
needs for state and local governments of all sizes when no other source exists to do so; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Cambria Community Services District 
opposes any efforts by Congress and the White House to reduce or repeal the federal 
tax exemption on interest earned from municipal bonds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that we oppose any action that would reduce or repeal 
the exemption on tax-exempt bond interest, and affirm that there should be no 
legislative action to apply any changes retroactively to current outstanding bonds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution shall be sent to our 
Congressional Representatives and key members of the Administration. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of June 2013. 

 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson, President 

Board of Directors 
 

APROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       

      Timothy J. Carmel 
      District Counsel 
ATTEST:      
 
 
_________________________ 
Kathy A. Choate 
District Clerk 
 

78



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.H. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager  
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Consideration of Report Regarding 
        Personnel Matters and General  
        Manager Authority 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors consider this report outlining the General 
Manager’s authority with regard to certain personnel matters. 
. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no fiscal impact related to this item, since all positions and placement of employees in 
salary ranges will be consistent with the budget, as approved by the Board of Directors 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
During consideration of recent personnel related matters related to position descriptions and 
salaries, Board Members raised the question as to why such matters were going to the Board 
for approval. As a result, staff has reviewed the CCSD Personnel Procedures, Policies and 
Rules (the “Personnel Procedures”), to clarify the process and authority of making various 
personnel related decisions. As discussed herein, the conclusion is that although there has 
been an administrative practice of bringing a wide range of personnel matters to the Board of 
Directors for review and approval, the Personnel Procedures provide authority for the General 
Manager to make decisions on many routine matters. Structuring the authority in this manner 
is consistent with State law governing community services districts (Government Code Section 
61040). Based upon this analysis, this report has been prepared for consideration by the 
Board of Directors, in order to clarify the General Manager’s decision making authority. 
 
In considering this matter, it should be emphasized that any personnel related determinations 
made by the General Manager must necessarily be consistent with the CCSD’s budget, as 
approved by the Board of Directors, as well as the CCSD’s organizational structure as set forth 
in the District’s Organization Chart. Also, staff is mindful of the need to have an open and 
transparent process. Accordingly, in implementing this authority the General Manager’s 
monthly report to the Board of Directors will include a listing of any and all such personnel 
related determinations. 
 
In accordance with CCSD Municipal Code Section 2.08.050, the Board of Directors has 
approved Personnel Procedures Policies and Rules, which includes provisions relating to the 
preparation, installation, revision and maintenance of a position classification plan for the 
District.  The CCSD’s personnel system is to be administered by the General Manager 
pursuant to CCSD Municipal Code Section 2.08.030. This is consistent with Government Code 
Section 61040(a), which provides that a community services district board of directors is to 
“…establish policies for the operation of the district. The board of directors shall provide for the 
implementation of those policies with is the responsibility of the district’s general manager.”  It 
also is consistent with Government Code Section 61051(a) and (b), which set forth the 

79



 
 

2

authority of general managers with regard to implementation of Board policy, as well as 
personnel matters. 
  
Article 3 of the Personnel Procedures addresses the CCSD’s classification plan.  Section 3.1 
provides that the General Manager is to prepare the plan, which includes detailed position 
description for positions in the competitive service. Section 3.2 provides that “The classification 
plan shall be adopted by the Manager and may be amended by the Manager from time to 
time.” Section 3.3 then provides for the allocation of positions in the competitive service to 
positions established by the plan. Section 3.4 addresses the issue of new positions, and 
provides that new positions are not to be created and filled until the classification plan has 
been amended to provide for the new position. As noted, the classification plan is within the 
General Manager’s authority to adopt and amend. Section 3.5 also provides that if the Board of 
Directors changes the District “organization methods, procedures, etc. resulting in a need to 
reclassify position, the Manager shall allocate such positions to more appropriate position 
descriptions”   Read together, these provision in the CCSD’s Personnel Procedures provide 
the General Manager with broad authority to create positions, and allocate them within the 
CCSD organization. 
 
Based upon the foregoing, in order to reduce the need for the Board of Directors to unnessarily 
have to address routine personnel matters such as the approval of positions, position 
descriptions or allocation of postions, the General Manager will instead exercise the authority 
granted by the CCSD’s duly adopted Personnel Procedures. Any needed salary range 
approvals or adjustments will be presented to the Board of Directors pursuant to Personnel 
Procedures Section 1.31. That Section provides for the establishiment of a detailed Payment 
and Compensation Plan which is to be adopted by the Board and which sets forth pay ranges 
and steps and other specifics of compensation. 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
 

80



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 7.I. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager  
  Tim Carmel, District Counsel 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Consideration of Resolution 29-2013  
        Adopting a Revised Board of Directors  
        Expense Reimbursement Policy  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution 29-2013, adopting a revised 
Board of Directors Expense Reimbursement Policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None, however, adoption of this revised Policy will assure conformance with State law and 
CCSD practices regarding reimbursement of expenses incurred by Board Members. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Section 8.4 of the Cambria Community Services District Board of Directors Bylaws provides 
that Board Members are entitled to reimbursement for their travel, meals and lodging, and 
other actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties required or 
authorized by the Board. This provision in the Bylaws is consistent with the requirements of 
Government Code Section 53232.2, which was added to State law as part of AB 1234, and 
sets forth certain regulations with respect to reimbursement of expenses for appointed and 
elected officials and for local agency designated employees.  Under State law, reimbursement 
of Board Members expenses that are incurred in the performance of their duties is to be 
pursuant to a written policy, adopted in a public meeting, specifying the types of occurrences 
that qualify a member of the legislative body to receive reimbursement of expenses relating to 
travel, meals, lodging and other actual and necessary expenses. 
 
District Counsel has recently reviewed the CCSD’s Travel Policy and has recommended that 
the Board adopt a revised Expense Reimbursement Policy. The revised Expense 
Reimbursement Policy (“Policy”) has been largely modeled on a sample policy for local 
agencies developed by the Institute for Local Government. This Policy will clarify the types of 
occurrences that qualify Board Members to receive reimbursement of expenses, and places 
limits on the amounts of expenses that may be reimbursed without prior Board approval. 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 

81



 
RESOLUTION NO. 29-2013 

June 27, 2013 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

ADOPTING A REVISED BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSE 
REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 

 
 
Whereas, Section 8.4 of the Cambria Community Services District Board of 
Directors Bylaws provides that Board Members are entitled to reimbursement for 
their travel, meals and lodging, and other actual and necessary expenses 
incurred in the performance of their duties required or authorized by the Board, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 53232.2; and 
 
Whereas, the Board of Directors takes its stewardship over the use of its limited 
public resources seriously; and 
 
Whereas, public resources should only be used when there is a substantial 
benefit to the CCSD; and 
 
Whereas, such benefits include: 
 

1. The opportunity to discuss the community’s concerns with state and 
federal officials; 

2. Participating in regional, state and national organizations whose activities 
affect the District; 

3. Attending educational seminars designed to improve officials’ skill and 
informational levels; and 

4. Promoting public service and morale by recognizing such service. 
 
Whereas, 1) legislative and other regional, state and federal agency business is 
frequently conducted over meals; 2) sharing a meal with regional, state and 
federal officials is frequently the best opportunity for a more extensive, focused 
and interrupted communication about the District’s policy concerns; and 3) each 
meal expenditure must comply with the limits and reporting requirements of local, 
state and federal law; and 
 
Whereas, this policy provides guidance to elected officials on the use and 
expenditure of the CCSD’s resources, as well as standards against which those 
expenditures will be measured; 
 
Whereas, pursuant to Government Code Section 53232.2(c), the Board’s 
reimbursement policy may specify the applicable reimbursement rates, and if the 
policy does not so specify, the reimbursement rate will default to the Internal 
Revenue Service rates; and 
 
Whereas, this policy is intended to satisfy the requirements of Government Code 
Section 53232.2 and 53232.3; and  
 

82



Whereas, this policy supplements the definition of actual and necessary 
expenses for purposes of state laws relating to permissible use of public 
resources; and  
 
Whereas, this policy also supplements the definition of necessary and 
reasonable expenses for purposes of federal and state income tax laws; and  
 
Whereas, this policy also applies to any charges made to a District credit card, 
case advances or other lines of credit. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, The Board of Directors of the Cambria Community 
Services District Does Hereby Resolve as Follows: 
 

1. Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 53232.2 and  
53232.3 the attached Cambria Community Services District Board 
of Directors Expense Reimbursement Policy, attached here to as 
Exhibit  “A”, and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby 
adopted.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27rd day of June, 2013. 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson, President 

Board of Directors 
 

APROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       

      Timothy J. Carmel 
      District Counsel 
ATTEST:      
 
_________________________ 
Kathy A. Choate 
District Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 83



Exhibit “A” 
 
 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSE  

REIMBURSEMENT POLICY 
 
 
 
 

Section 1.    Applicability.  This Expense Reimbursement Policy applies to the 
Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District. 
 
Section 2.     Authorized Expenses.   District funds, equipment, supplies 
(including letterhead), titles and staff time must only be used for authorized 
District business.  Expenses incurred in connection with the following types of 
activities generally constitute authorized expenses, as long as the other 
requirements of this policy, and other District policies, are met: 
 

1.  Communicating with representatives fo regional, state and national 
government and other affected stakeholders on proposed or adopted 
District policy positions; 
 

2. Attending educational seminars designed to improve officials skills and 
information levels; 
 

3. Participating in regional, state and national organizations whose activities 
affect the District’s interests; 
 

4. Recognizing service to the District (for example, thanking a longtime 
employee with a retirement gift or celebration of nominal value and cost); 
 

5. Attending District events; 
 

 
All other expenditures require prior approval of the Board of Directors. 

 
Examples of personal expenses that the District will not reimburse include, but 
are not limited to: 
 

1. The personal portion of any trip; 
 

2.  Political or charitable contributions or events; 
 

3. Family expenses, including spouses or partners expenses when 
accompanying the official on District related business, as well as children 
or pet related expenses. 
 

4. Entertainment expenses, including theatre, movies (either in-room or at 
the theatre) sporting event (including gym, massage and/or golf related 
expenses), or other cultural events; 
 84



5. Non-mileage personal automobile expenses, including repairs, traffic 
citations, insurance or gasoline; and 
 

6. Personal losses incurred while on District business.   
 

Any questions regarding the propriety of a particular type of expense should be 
resolved by the Board of Directors before the expense is incurred. 
 
Section 3.    Cost Control.  To conserve District resources and keep 
expenditures within community standards for public officials, expenditures should 
adhere to the following guidelines.  In the event that expenses are incurred which 
exceed these guidelines, the cost borne or reimbursed by the District will be 
limited to the costs that fall within the guidelines.   
 
Transportation. The most economical mode and class of transportation 
reasonably consistent with scheduling needs and cargo space requirements 
must be used, using the most direct and time-efficient route. Charges for rental 
vehicles may be reimbursed under this provision if more than one District official 
is attending an out of town conference, and it is determined that sharing a rental 
vehicle is more economical than other forms of transportation. In making such 
determination, the cost of the rental vehicle, parking and gasoline will be 
compared to the combined cost of such other forms of transportation. 
Government and group rates must be used when available. 
 
Airfare.  Air travel shall be reimbursed at the lowest reasonable coach rate 
available.  Airfares that are equal or less than those available through the 
Enhanced Local Government Airfare Program offered through the League of 
California Cities (www.cacities.org/travel), the California State Association of 
Counties (http://www.csac.counties.org/default.asp?id=635) and the State of 
California are presumed to be the most economical and reasonable for purposes 
of reimbursement under this Policy. 
 
Automobile.  Automobile mileage is reimbursed at Internal Revenue Service 
rates presently in effect (see www.irs.gov). These rates are designed to 
compensate the driver for gasoline, insurance, maintenance, and other expenses 
associated with operating the vehicle. This amount does not include bridge and 
road tolls, which are also reimbursable. The Internal Revenue Service rates will 
not be paid for rental vehicles; only receipted fuel expenses will be reimbursed.  
 
Car Rental.  Rental rates that are equal or less than those available through the 
State of California’s website (http://www.catravelsmart.com/default.htm) shall be 
considered the most economical and reasonable for purposes of reimbursement 
under this policy. 
 
Taxis/Shuttles.  Taxis or shuttles fares may be reimbursed, including a 15 
percent gratuity per fare, when the cost of such fares is equal or less than the 
cost of car rentals, gasoline and parking combined, or when such transportation 
is necessary for time-efficiency. 
 
Lodging.  Lodging expenses will be reimbursed or paid for when travel on official 
District business reasonably requires an overnight stay. 
 85



1. Conferences/Meetings.  If such lodging is in connection with a conference, 
lodging expenses must not exceed the group rate published by the 
conference sponsor for the meeting in question if such rates are available 
at the time of booking. If the group rate is not available, see next section. 
 

2. Other Lodging.  Travelers must request government rates, when available. 
A listing of hotels offering government rates in different areas is available 
at http://www.catravelsmart.com/lodguideframes.htm. Lodging rates that 
are equal or less to government rates are presumed to be reasonable and 
hence reimbursable for purposes of this policy. In addition, either of the 
following standards may be used in determining whether a rate is 
reasonable and if the rate meets any of the following standards, the rate 
will be presumed reasonable. 
 

a. Median Hotel Cost. In the event the government rates are not 
available at a given time or in a given area, lodging rates that do 
not exceed the median retail price for lodging for that area listed on 
websites like www.priceline.com or an equivalent service shall be 
considered reasonable and hence reimbursable. 

 
b. IRS Rates. In the event that government rates are not available at a 

given time or in a given area, lodging rates that do not exceed the 
IRS per diem rates for a given area are presumed reasonable and 
hence reimbursable. 

 
Meals.  As permitted in Government Code Section 53232.2(c), meal 
reimbursement shall either at: (1) the following individual meal rates; or (2) the 
most recent IRS rates, as established in IRS Publication 463. 
 

1.  Breakfast—Ten and no/100 dollars ($10.00); 
2.  Lunch—Fifteen and no/100dollars ($15.00); 
3.  Dinner—Twenty-five and no/100 dollars )25.00); or 
4.  Daily Rate—Fifty and no/100 dollars ($50). 

 
The above rates apply to 24-hour periods.  For less that 24-hour periods, 
breakfast will be reimbursed if travel began no later than 7:00 a.m.; lunch will be 
reimbursed if the travel began no later than 12:00 p.m.; and dinner will be 
reimbursed if the travel began no later than 6:00 p.m. 
 
As provided in IRS Publication 463, the U.S. Government Per Diem Schedule 
establishes rates for specific geographic areas, as stated on the U.S. General 
Services Administration web site (www.gsa.gov), which shall include tax and a 
15% to 20% gratuity, as appropriate. 
 
To determine the maximum reimbursement amount for daily meals using the 
U.S. Government Per Diem Schedule, access www.gsa.gov and take the 
following steps: 
 

a.  Access the per diem rates table 
b. Identify the M&IE rate for the area where the travel will take place. 

 
 86



c. Access the Meals and Incidental Expense table and apply the M&IE rate 
to determine the daily limit for meals by adding the amounts for all meals 
identified. 

 
If meals are provided by the event or hotel and consumed by the official, the 
amount identified in the applicable meal rate for that meal shall be deducted from 
the allowable reimbursement amount.   Board members are encouraged take 
advantage of meals provided unless infeasible due to times or business 
necessity.   
 
The District will not pay for alcohol/personal bar expenses. 
 
For group meal events organized by others (for example, conferences and other 
types of activities that fall within the list of “authorized expenditures” above), the 
District recognizes that the per person cost may exceed these maximums. 
 
Telephone/Fax/Cellular. Board members will be reimbursed for actual 
telephone and fax expenses incurred on District business. Telephone bills should 
identify which calls were made on District business. For cellular calls when the 
Board member has a particular number of minutes included in the Board 
member’s plan, the Board member can identify the percentage of calls made on 
public business. 
 
Internet.  Board members will be reimbursed for internet access connection 
and/or usage fees away from home, not to exceed $15.00 per day, if internet 
access is necessary for District related business. 
 
Airport Parking.  Long-term parking must be used for travel exceeding 24-
hours. 
 
Cash Advance Policy.  From time to time, it may be necessary for a Board 
member to request a cash advance to cover anticipated expenses while traveling 
or doing business on the District’s behalf. Such request for an advance should be 
submitted to the District Clerk at least 10 days prior to the need for the advance 
with the following information: 
 

1. The purpose of the expenditure(s); 
 

2. The benefits of such expenditure to the residents of the District; 
 

3. The anticipated amount of the expenditure(s) (for example, hotel rates, 
meal costs, and transportation expenses); and 
 

4. The dates of the expenditure(s). 
 

Any unused advance must be returned to the District treasury within two 
business days of the Board member’s return, along with an expense report and 
receipts documenting how the advance was used in compliance with this 
expense Policy. 
 
Other.  Baggage handling fees of up to $1 per bag and gratuities of up to 15 
percent will be reimbursed.  87



 
Expenses for which District Board members receive reimbursement from another 
agency are not reimbursable. 
 
In the event there is any uncertainty as to whether a request complies with this 
policy, a request for clarification shall be sought from the District Board of 
Directors.   
 
Section 4. Credit Card Use Policy.  The District does not issue credit cards to 
individual office holders but does have a District credit card for selected District 
expenses. The District office holders may use the District’s credit card for such 
purposes as airline tickets and hotel reservations by following the same 
procedures for cash advances. Receipts documenting expenses incurred on the 
District credit card and compliance with this policy must be submitted within five 
business days of use.  
 
The District credit cards may not be used for personal expenses, even if the 
Board Member subsequently reimburses the District. 
 
Section 5. Expense Report Content and Submission Deadline.  All credit card 
expenses and expense reimbursement requests must be submitted on an 
expense report from provided by the District. This form shall include the following 
advisory: 
 

All expenses reported on this form must comply with the District’s policies 
relating to expenses and use of public resources. The information 
submitted on this form is a public record. Penalties for misusing public 
resources and violating the District’s policies include loss of 
reimbursement privileges, restitution, civil and criminal penalties as well as 
additional income tax liability. 

 
Expense reports must document that the expense in question met the 
requirements of this policy. For example, if the meeting is with a legislator, the 
Board member should explain whose meals were purchased, what issues were 
discussed and how those relate to the District’s adopted legislative positions and 
priorities. 
 
Board members must submit their expense reports within 30 days of an expense 
being incurred, accompanied by receipts documenting each expense. Restaurant 
receipts, in addition to any credit card receipts, are also part of the necessary 
documentation. 
 
Inability to provide such documentation in a timely fashion may result in the 
expense being borne by the official. 
 
Section 6. Audits of Expense Reports. All expenses are subject to verification 
that they comply with this policy. 
 
 
 
 
 88



Section 7. Reports to Governing Board.  At the following District Board 
meeting, each official shall briefly report on any Brown Act meeting attended at 
District expense as well as any conferences, educational seminars or meetings 
with legislators or other governmental officials. 
 
If multiple officials attended, a joint report may be made.  The report may be 
made orally or in writing. 
 
Section 8. Compliance with Laws.  District Board members should keep in 
mind that some expenditures may be subject to reporting under the Political 
Reform Act and other laws.  All agency expenditures are public records subject 
to disclosure under the Public Records Act and other laws. 
 
Section 9. Violation of This Policy.  Under State law, use of public resources 
or falsifying expense reports in violation of this policy may result in any or all of 
the following: 1) loss of reimbursement privileges, 2) a demand for restitution to 
the District, 3) the agency’s reporting the expenses as income to the elected 
official to state and federal tax authorities, 4) civil penalties of up to $1,000 per 
day and three times the value of the resources used, and 5) prosecution for 
misuse of public resources. 

89



 CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 8.A. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Alleyne LaBossiere, Finance Manager 
   
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013  Subject: Public Hearing to Discuss and Consider  
        Resolution 21-2013 Approving the  
        CCSD Budget for Fiscal Year   
        2013/2014 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. Receive staff presentation on the proposed final CCSD Budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2013/2014.  

2. Open the public hearing. 
3. Receive public input. 
4. Close public hearing. 
5. Adopt Resolution 21-2013 approving the CCSD Budget for FY 2013/2014. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The FY 2013/2014 CCSD Budget establishes the CCSD’s plan for total anticipated revenue 
and expenditures as follows and a net transfer of $516,399 from reserves is projected to 
balance the budget: 
 

FUND TOTAL REVENUE & 
TRANSFERS FROM 

RESTRICTED 
RESERVES* 

TOTAL 
EXPENDITURES 

TOTAL TRANSFERS 
(TO)/FROM 

UNRESTRICTED 
RESERVES  

 

Water Enterprise 
Fund 

$2,162,800 $2,453,862 $291,162  

Wastewater 
Enterprise Fund 

$2,117,200 $2,350,378 $233,178  

General Fund $3,643,135 $3,635,194 ($    7,941)  
*Total Transfers from Restricted Reserves consists of $5,000 for Voluntary Lot Merger Program. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Attached is the DRAFT FY 2013/2014 Budget for review.  Key assumptions and highlights are 
included in the Draft Budget.  The most significant assumptions are: 
 

 An increase in Water Sales of $31,000 and an increase in Wastewater Sales of $21,000 
from FY 2012/2013. 

 A $36,343 increase in Property Tax Revenue from FY 2012/2013.  While this 2% 
increase mirrors San Luis Obispo County’s budgeted increase, the projected increase 
for the CCSD was arrived at independently. 

90



 
 

 

 Personnel costs, which consist of Salaries and Wages plus Payroll Taxes and Benefits, 
are based on the terms of existing Memorandums of Understanding and actual rates for 
Cost of Living Adjustment, retirement, workers’ compensation insurance and payroll 
taxes while a projected increase of four (4) percent for healthcare benefits is budgeted.  
(On June 20, 2013, CalPERS reported that there will be a 3.8% increase in HMO costs 
and a 5.8% increase in Medicare HMO costs.  These increases materially match the 
budgeted increases).  An increase of $231,858 is projected for personnel costs.  
Additional details regarding personnel costs are on Page 1 (of 4) in the Highlights 
section of the Budget. 

 Total Budgeted Maintenance & Repair/Major Maintenance/Capital Outlay/Capital 
Expenditures will increase by $153,020 from the total budgeted for FY 2012/2013.  
Additional details regarding Major Maintenance, Capital Outlay and Capital 
expenditures are provided for each department/fund.  

 Rebate and Retrofit Program Expenditures will increase by $68,838 from the total 
projected for FY 2012/2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:  Executive Summary 
   Organization Chart 

CHANGES FROM DRAFT BUDGET PRESENTED MAY 23, 2013 
DRAFT FY 2013/2014 CCSD Budget 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
Resolution 21-2013 
 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ ROBINETTE ___RICE ____ 
 

91



Cambria Community Services District 
Proposed Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Budget 

Executive Summary 
June 27, 2013 

General Manager Gruber 
 

 
 
It is with great pleasure that I present the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Budget  to the CCSD 
Board of Directors for approval. During the last three months I have worked closely with 
the Department Managers on formulating a comprehensive Budget for next fiscal year. I 
would like to thank the Budget Ad-hoc Committee for their hours of hard work on 
reviewing the budget and working with staff in preparation of the Budget for today’s 
meeting. 
 
The proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 represents a projected 1.2 % percent 
increase in revenues for all Departments compared to Fiscal Year 2012/2013.  
FY budget revenues for 2012/2013 were $7,776,021. FY budget revenues for 
2013/2014 are projected to be $7,868,135 a $92,114 increase from last year.  
FY 2013/2014 proposed Budget does not assume revenues from retrofit in lieu fees for 
People’s Self-Help, water and wastewater connection fees from the Kingston Bay 
project and water and wastewater connections fees for future issuance on intent to 
serve letters for individuals current on the wait list.  
 
The proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 represents a projected 3.1% increase 
in expenditures for all Departments compared to Fiscal Year 2012/2013 Fiscal Year. 
Fiscal Year Budget expenditures for 2012/2013 are $7,953,698. Fiscal Year 2013/2014 
expenditures are $8,196,000 a $242,902 increase. 
 
Attached on pages 1-4 of the Fiscal Year 2013/2014 Proposed Budget are the 
Highlights and detailed summaries provided to the CCSD Board of Directors outlining in 
detail key revenue and expenditures relating to the proposed Budget. These highlights 
provide a better understanding and explanations regarding the Budget, specifically key 
areas that may require additional explanation. A one page summary is also attached 
outlining changes from the Draft Budget presented to you as part of your May Board 
Meeting.  
 
The Proposed Budget as presented will require that funds be taken out of both of the 
Water and Wastewater Enterprise Fund Reserves. In recent years the budgets for both 
the Water and Wastewater Departments have identified projects that were deemed 
priorities relating to infrastructure improvements. In many instances these projects were 
not completed as identified in previous Budgets, therefore at the end of the Fiscal Year 
the remaining funds that were not spent were rolled over into what we call Water and 
Wastewater Reserves. As part of today’s presentation of the Budget I will briefly touch 
on funds that were specifically allocated, however were not spent. 
 

92



The Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 continues to put significant emphasis 
on infrastructure repair and major maintenance. Due to the amount of work that needs 
to be accomplished and what has historically been deferred in the past there is a need 
to take funds from both the Water and Wastewater Reserves. The proposed budget 
before you today is progressive in addressing and identifying current deficiencies that 
exist within our systems. 
 
Additional employees will also be added as identified within the detailed highlight 
sheets. These positions will be instrumental in improving system reliability, addressing 
infrastructure deficiencies, reducing the probability of system failure, environmental 
protection, customer service and conservation. The additional positions that will be 
added are one Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, one additional Water Treatment 
Plant Operator and one 28 hour per week Administrative Technician I position that will 
back fill for the current Billing Clerk who will become the District’s Conservation 
Specialist. A detailed organizational chart is included as part of your budget.  
 
The CCSD Board of Directors are committed to people who have patiently endured 
many years of being on the wait list and has funded the Conservation Department 
accordingly as part of the Budget process. The Conservation Budget will enable the 
implementation of the Demand Measurement Measures in part as identified with the 
Maddaus Water Efficiency Program. The implementation of future Demand 
Management Measures will offset future water demand, thus enabling the District to 
issue intent to serve letters. 
 
The Proposed Fiscal Year Budget for 2013/2014 has a Capital Improvement 
Component. The Capital Improvement Budget is being proposed for the first time in 
several years. The District is specifically identifying critical infrastructure deficiencies 
that need to be addressed and resolved. 
 
The Proposed Fiscal Year Budget for 2013/2014 recognizes the need, due to our 
remoteness to support and fund a fully functioning and well trained Fire Department as 
well as continued to support NCOR, CERT and the ongoing maintenance of the Fire 
Department facilities and associated equipment.  
 
The proposed Fiscal Year Budget for 2013/2014 recognizes the importance of our 
Facilities and Resources Department specifically the Veterans Hall, public restrooms 
and administrative facilities and have funded these areas in a manner that continues to 
improve each of these facilities. The Parks, Recreation and Open Space Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2013/2014 continues to improve and maintain the Fiscalini Ranch Preserve, 
Trails, Pocket Parks, Skate Park and improvements to the East Ranch. A collaborative 
close working relationship with the FFRP furthers the community’s efforts in 
safeguarding and improving our beautiful natural resources while maximizing our limited 
funds.  
 
In closing the proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2013/2014 represents a forward thinking 
vision for the Community and for the CCSD. I would like to thank the CCSD Board of 

93



Directors for their leadership and countless hours they spend making Cambria a better 
place for everyone to work, live and play.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jerry Gruber 
General Manager 
Cambria Community Services District.  

94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



RESOLUTION 21-2013 
JUNE 27, 2013 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
APPROVING THE CCSD BUDGET  

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013/2014 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Manager has submitted for consideration the 
Cambria Community Services District (CCSD) Fiscal Year (FY) 2013/2014 
Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the draft preliminary FY 2013/2014 CCSD Budget was 
introduced during a regular business item on May 23, 2013, and all persons were 
given an opportunity to be heard and their suggestions carefully considered; and 
 
 WHEREAS a public hearing on June 27, 2013, on the final FY 2013/2014 
CCSD Budget was duly scheduled, advertised, and held, and all persons were 
given an opportunity to be heard and their suggestions carefully considered. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the CCSD Board of Directors 
has reviewed the final FY 2013/2014 CCSD Budget for the period July 1, 2013 
through June 30, 2014, and hereby finds that the Budget is a sound plan for 
financing and expenditure control of required CCSD operations and services, and 
said Budget is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Directors is aware of the 
potential that events beyond control of the CCSD that could substantially reduce 
CCSD revenues and/or increase expenditures. Therefore, the General Manager 
may temporarily suspend the expenditure of funds within the adopted Budget if in 
his judgment such temporary suspension is necessary to protect the CCSD’s 
financial position and the impact of such a temporary suspension on CCSD 
operations will not be substantially detrimental to CCSD services. The General 
Manager is directed to administer the business operations of the CCSD as called 
for in the Operating Budget for FY 2013/2014 and as modified by any such 
temporary expenditure suspension. The General Manager is further directed to 
report back to the CCSD Board of Directors, as necessary, with 
recommendations for revision of the Budget when, and if, Budget impacts are 
known and specific CCSD program or service level adjustments can be 
formulated. 

 
  

126



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the CCSD Board of Directors hereby 
directs the General Manager to levy and collect special assessments and other 
fees as duly approved by the Board and to administer and expend the tax 
proceeds in accordance with the enabling legislative direction.  
 
 
On the motion of Director __________________________, seconded by Director  
 
____________________________, and the following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th day of June 2013. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson, President 
      Board of Directors 
 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________ 
Kathy A. Choate                       Timothy J. Carmel                           
District Clerk                                  District Counsel 

127



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 8.B. 
 
FROM:  Jerry Gruber, General Manager 

Alleyne LaBossiere, Finance Manager 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Meeting Date:   June 27, 2013  Subject: Public Hearing to Discuss and Consider  
        Resolution 22-2012 Approving a 
        Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment 
        Consumer Price Index (CPI) Adjustment 
        at the rate of 1.3% for FY 2013-2014 
Recommendations: 
 

1. Receive staff report. 
2. Open public hearing. 
3. Receive public comment. 
4. Close public hearing. 
5. Adopt Resolution 22-2013 approving a 1.3% CPI adjustment in the existing Fire 

Suppression Benefit Assessment rates, effective July 1, 2013, in compliance with Resolution 
27-2003 and the related Engineer’s Report. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Adoption of the resolution increases the annual fire suppression benefit assessment revenue by 
approximately $ 5,000 for a projected total of $ 417,000 for FY 2013/2014. The Fire Suppression 
Benefit Assessment provides supplemental funding for Fire Department operations. 
 
Discussion: 
 
CCSD Resolution 27-2003 confirmed the special benefit assessment for fire suppression services. On 
or before July 1st of each subsequent fiscal year, and pursuant to Government Code §§ 50078 et seq., 
the assessment may be increased for the ensuing year based upon the Consumer Price Index for the 
Los Angeles/Anaheim/Riverside area, not to exceed 5.4%. The United States’ Bureau of Labor 
Statistics recorded a 1.3% increase for the designated area for the twelve month period ending March 
31, 2013. 
 
The proposed range of assessments compared with existing rates is as follows: 
 
      FY 2013/2014   FY 2012/2013 
Vacant Lot $17.69 $17.46 
Single Family Residence < 3600 sq. ft. $87.19 $86.96 
Single Family Residence > 3600 sq. ft. $132.08 $130.38 
Multi-Family Residence per Dwelling Unit $44.09 $43.52 
Commercial Range $264.07-2,245.34 $260.68 – 2,216.52 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
 

128



 
RESOLUTION NO. 22 2013 

June 27, 2013 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

APPROVING THE FIRE SUPPRESSION BENEFIT ASSESSMENT 
CONSUMER PRICE INDEX ADJUSTMENT 

IN THE AMOUNT OF 1.3% FOR FY 2013/2014 
 

The Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District does hereby 
resolve as follows: 
 

1. Approves a Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment Consumer Price 
Index Adjustment in the amount of 1.3%, effective July 1, 2013, in 
compliance with Resolution 27-2003 and the related Engineer’s 
Report. 

 
2. Thus, approves the following assessments for FY 2013/2014: 

 
      FY 2013/2014 
Vacant Lot $17.69 
Single Family Residence < 3600 sq. ft. $87.19 
Single Family Residence > 3600 sq. ft. $132.08 
Multi-Family Residence per Dwelling Unit $44.09 
Commercial Range $264.07 – 2,245.34 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th day of June 2013. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Michael Thompson, President 

Board of Directors 
 

APROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       

      Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 
ATTEST:      
 
_________________________ 
Kathy A. Choate, District Clerk 

129



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 8.C. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Tim Carmel, District Counsel 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Discussion and Consideration to Adopt 
        Resolution 24-2013 and Introduce  
        Ordinance 04-2013 Which Will Allow the 
        District to Utilize Alternative Bidding  
        Procedures in the Uniform Public  
        Construction Cost Accounting Act  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors: 1) adopt Resolution 24-2013, which will allow 
the District to utilize alternative bidding procedures in the Uniform Public Construction Cost 
Accounting Act (“UPCCAA”) and; 2) introduce by title only and waive further readings of 
Ordinance 04-2013. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Implementation of the new procedures will involve budgeted resources. Avoiding competitive 
bidding may result in savings on staff time and resources devoted to the bidding process, and 
will allow for flexibility in awarding certain types of public works contracts. However, adoption 
and implementation of new accounting procedures may require an initial investment of staff 
time and resources until the procedures become more familiar. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Under the Sections 20680 et seq. of the Public Contracting Code (“PCC”), which is applicable 
to community service districts, all public works projects valued over $25,000 must be 
competitively bid and the contract must be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder.  The 
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act  (“UPCCA”) is a series of sections within the 
Public Contract Code (PCC Sections 22000-22045) that allow a participating local agency to 
avoid competitive bidding for projects valued up to $175,000 if the agency adopts certain 
accounting procedures. The CCSD is not currently participating in the UPCCAA program. 
 
Should the CCSD opt to become subject to the UPCCAA, the District may bid any public 
project as follows: 
 

1.  Public projects of $45,000 or less may be performed by the CCSD’s employees by 
force account, by negotiated contract, or by purchase order; 
 

2. Public projects of $175,000 or less may be let to contract by informal bidding 
procedures; 
 

3. Public projects in excess of $175,000 shall be let to contract by formal bidding 
procedures. 

130



 
 

2

 
As the foregoing shows, by adopting the procedures in the UPCCA the CCSD will be able to 
use its own workforce on projects up to $45,000 or by negotiated contract or purchase order, 
and utilize informal bidding procedures for projects costing $175,000 or less.   
 
Under PCC 22034, any public agency that adopts the Act must enact an informal bidding 
ordinance.  In addition to the informal bidding procedures, PCC 22038 allows the public 
agency, in its discretion, to reject all bids presented. In order to do so, the public agency need 
only provide the apparent low bidder with notice of the agency’s intention to reject the bid at 
least two days prior to announcing such rejection.  

 
After all initial bids have been rejected, PCC 22038 provides the public agency with the 
following options: 

 
1. It may abandon the project or re-advertise for bids; or 

 
2. By adoption of a resolution by a four-fifths majority of its governing body declaring 

the project can be performed more economically by its own employees, the public 
agency may have the project done by force account without further complying with 
the Act. 

 
Resolution 24-2013 has been prepared for consideration by the Board of Directors in order to 
elect to become subject to the UPCCAA. Ordinance 04-2013 has also been prepared for 
consideration by the Board of Directors to comply with the statutory requirement to provide the 
required informal bidding procedures. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
 

131



 

1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 04-2013 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

DATED:  June 27, 2013 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ADDING CHAPTER 1.06 TO PROVIDE INFORMAL 

BIDDING PROCEDURES UNDER THE UNIFORM PUBLIC 
CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING ACT (Section 
22000 et seq. of the California Public Contract Code) 

 
 
The Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District Does Ordain as 
follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  
 
Public projects, as defined by Section 22002 of the California Uniform Public 
Construction Cost Accounting Act (the “Act”; Public Contract Code Sections 22000, et 
seq.) may be let to contract by informal procedures as set forth in Public Contract Code 
Sections 22032, et seq. 
 
SECTION 2. 
 
A list of contractors shall be developed and maintained in accordance with the 
provisions of Public Contract Code Section 22034 and criteria promulgated from time to 
time by the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission (the 
“Commission”). 
 
 
SECTION 3.   
 
Where a public project is to be performed which is subject to the provisions of this 
Ordinance, a notice inviting informal bids shall be mailed to all of the contractors for the 
category of work to be bid, as shown on the list developed in accordance with Section 2 
above, and to all construction trade journals as specified by the Commission in 
accordance with Public Contract Code Section 22036. Additional contractors and/or 
construction trade journals may be notified at the discretion of the District, provided 
however: 
 
(1) If there is no list of qualified contractors maintained by the District for the particular 
category of work to be performed, the notice inviting bids shall be sent only to the 
construction trade journals specified by the Commission. 
 

132



 

2 
 

(2) If the product or service is proprietary in nature such that it can be obtained only 
from a certain contractor or contractors, the notice inviting informal bids may be sent 
exclusively to such contractor or contractors. 
 
SECTION 4. 
 
The District General Manager is authorized to award informal contracts pursuant to this 
Ordinance, and the procedures promulgated hereunder. 
 
SECTION 5.  
 
If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, or clause of this Ordinance or 
any part thereof is for any reason held to be unlawful, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance or any part thereof.  The Board of 
Directors hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, or clause thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more 
section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, or clause be declared 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 6.  
 
A summary of this Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper published and 
circulated in the Cambria Community Services District at least five (5) days prior to the 
Board of Directors meeting at which the proposed Ordinance is to be adopted.  A 
certified copy of the full text of the proposed Ordinance shall be posted in the office of 
the District Clerk.  Within fifteen (15) days after adoption of the Ordinance, the summary 
with the names of those Board Members voting for and against the Ordinance shall be 
published again, and the District Clerk shall post a certified copy of the full text of such 
adopted Ordinance. 
 
 
SECTION 7.   
 
This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 
 
The foregoing Ordinance amendment was adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of 

Directors of the Cambria Community Services District held on the 27th day of June 

2013. 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
       
 
 

133



 

3 
 

 
 
 
             
       Michael Thompson 
       President, Board of Directors 
 
       
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
        
Kathy A. Choate     Timothy J. Carmel 
District Clerk      District Counsel 
 
 
 

134



 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-2013 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA IN THE MATTER OF: UNIFORM 
PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION COST ACCOUNTING 

PROCEDURES 
 
WHEREAS, Public Contract Code Sections 22000 et seq., the Uniform Public 
Construction Cost Accounting Act (the “Act”), establishes such a uniform cost 
accounting standard; and 
 
WHEREAS, the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Commission 
(“Commission”) established under the Act has developed uniform public construction 
cost accounting procedures for implementation by local public agencies in the 
performance of or in the contracting for construction of public projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District 
(“District”) deems it appropriate and in the best interests of the District to adopt the Act.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District hereby elects, under Public Contract Code Section 22030, 
to become subject to the uniform public construction cost accounting procedures set 
forth in the Act and to the Commission’s policies and procedures manual and cost 
accounting review procedures, as they may each be amended from time to time, and 
directs that the Secretary to the Board of Directors  notify the State Controller forwith of 
this election. 
 
This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of __________ 2013. 
 
 
 
              

135



Resolution No. 24-2013  Cambria Community Services District 
June 27, 2013  Page 2 of 2 
 
 
         Michael Thompson, President 
         Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Kathy A. Choate, District Clerk   Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 

136



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 8.D. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
  Kathy Choate, District Clerk 
  Tim Carmel, District Counsel 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Discussion and Consideration to   
        Confirm Itemized Report and Consider  
        Adoption of Resolution 23-2013 to  
        Collect Delinquent Solid Waste   
        Collection and Disposal Charges on the  
        County Tax Roll 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. Receive staff report and review the itemized report for delinquent solid waste collection 
and disposal charges. 

2. Open Public Hearing. 
3. Take Public Testimony. 
4. Close Public Hearing. 
5. Discussion. 
6. Adopt Resolution 23-2013 adopting the itemized report (Exhibit “A” to the Resolution) 

describing each parcel and the amount of delinquent solid waste collection and disposal 
charges to be collected against each parcel. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The property owner of record is responsible for payment. Collecting delinquent amounts on the 
tax roll ensures the CCSD and Mission Country Disposal will receive payment for solid waste 
collection and disposal from owners who do not pay their bill. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
On October 1, 2009 the CCSD Board of Directors adopted Ordinance 02-2009 electing to have 
delinquent solid waste collection and disposal service charges collected on the County tax roll 
in accordance with the provisions of Health and Safety Code Section 5473 et seq. 
 
The CCSD Board of Directors found that the timely and full payment of charges for solid waste 
collection and disposal services is critical for the successful operation of the CCSD’s solid 
waste franchise and elected to, by resolution, have solid waste collection and disposal charges 
which are delinquent at the end of any fiscal year collected on the tax roll. 
 
Mission Country Disposal has requested and filed an itemized report with the CCSD to collect 
delinquent solid waste collection and disposal charges on the 2013/2014 tax roll. Charges 
outstanding total approximately $3,000. 
 

137



 
 

2

The Board is required to hold a hearing at which it is to consider all objections and protests to 
the itemized report. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 5473.3, at the conclusion of 
the hearing the Board may adopt, revise, change, reduce or modify any charge or overrule any 
or all objections. The attached Resolution has been prepared for Board consideration to 
approve and adopt the report. Thereafter it will be filed with the County Auditor and the 
amounts of the delinquent charges will be entered as charges against the parcels and 
collected on the annual bills for taxes levied against the respective lots and parcels. 
 
Attachments: Resolution 23-2013 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
  

138



 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-2013 

JUNE 27, 2013 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CAMBRIA 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE 
ITEMIZED REPORT AND AUTHORIZING DELINQUENT SOLID WASTE 

COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL SERVICE CHARGES TO BE 
COLLECTED ON TAX ROLL 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Cambria Community Services 
District (“District”) makes the following findings of fact: 
 
 1. On August 20, 2009, the District Board duly adopted Ordinance No.  
02-2009 pursuant to which the District elected to have delinquent solid waste collection 
and disposal service charges collected on the tax roll in the same manner, by the same 
persons, and at the same time as its general taxes, all pursuant to applicable 
Government and Health and Safety Codes; and  
 
 2. On June 1, 2013, in accordance with Health and Safety Code Section 
5473.1, the District Clerk mailed letters to owners of real property notifying them of the 
District’s intent to have such solid waste collection and disposal service charges 
delinquent as of May 15, 2013, placed on the 2013-2014 County tax roll for collection, 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 5473 and 5473a by filing a written report 
with the Auditor-Controller’s office of the County of San Luis Obispo, containing a 
description of each parcel of real property with delinquent solid waste collection and 
disposal service charges and the owner thereof; and 
 
 3. Furthermore, such notice informed the property owner of the time and 
place of the public hearing to be held before the District Board scheduled for June 27, 
2013 at which time all interested persons will be given the opportunity to present oral or 
written testimony for or against said report or any portions thereof; and  
 
 4. On or before July 19, 2013 the final filing date established by the County 
Auditor-Controller’s Office, the Finance Manager must submit all changes, additions and 
deletions to such list on a final filing basis; and 
 
 5. In accordance with San Luis Obispo County regulations, as of July 1, 2008 
a fee of $36.00 will be charged for each assessment removed or revised from the 
assessment listing occurring on a tax bill after extension. Thus, any charge levied 
against the District for change(s) in an assessment amount of a property owner that is 
not the result of District error will be subsequently invoiced and collected by the District 
from the property owner of record. 
 
 

139



Resolution No. 23-2013  Cambria Community Services District 
June 27, 2013  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Cambria 
Community Services District as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The above findings are true and correct, and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves and adopts the itemized report describing the 
delinquent solid waste collection and disposal service charges attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” and hereby authorizes such charges to be collected on the County real 
property tax roll, pursuant to the procedures set forth in Health and Safety Code 
Sections 5473 et seq. 
 
Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th day of June 2013. 

 

              

       Michael Thompson, President 
       Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

       

Kathy A. Choate, District Clerk   Timothy J. Carmel, District Counsel 

 

 

140



 2013 List of Delinquent Solid Waste Accounts

APN Amount

013-124-005 $274.12

022-031-016 $105.48

022-041-001 $55.24

022-233-014 $173.97

022-261-036 $268.12

023-025-021 $330.72

023-081-002 $316.68

023-112-031 $274.12

023-162-022 $290.72

023-205-013 $168.97

023-383-045 $274.12

023-401-006 $274.12

023-461-015 $90.43

Total Parcels: 13 $2,896.81

141



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.A. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager  
 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013 Subject: Consideration of Numerical or  
        Percentage Limit related to Amendment  
        of San Luis Obispo County Growth  
        Management Ordinance. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors discuss and consider the issue of including a 
numerical or percentage limit related to the CCSD’s request to San Luis Obispo County to 
amend the Growth Management Ordinance, including the percentages and options presented 
in this report. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
On March 21, 2013 the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 09-2013 to provide for the 
issuance of intent to serve letters while the District continues to pursue a long-term supplemental 
water supply project (“Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters”).  Section 2 of Resolution 09-
2013 addressed the San Luis Obispo County Growth Management Ordinance (GMO), and 
directed CCSD staff to work with the County to amend the GMO to permit the recipients of Interim 
Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters to obtain building permits.   Accordingly, correspondence has 
been sent to the Assistant Director of the San Luis Obispo Planning and Building Department, 
Kami Griffin, requesting assistance to initiate the process of preparing an agenda item for the 
Board of Supervisors to consider an appropriate amendment to the GMO. 
 
Based on inquiries prior to sending the letter to Ms. Griffin, we were initially advised to include 
a proposed growth rate in our request. In response, in the letter to Ms. Griffin, CCSD staff 
noted that the current draft of the Administrative Policy that we intend to take to the Board of 
Directors as part of the implementation of the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve Letters 
includes a procedure for the Board to determine how many Intent to Serve Letters are to be 
made available for issuance. That determination would be based upon an analysis presented 
by CCSD staff of the status of the CCSD’s Points Bank and the amount of water conservation 
being achieved in the CCSD service area. In addition, the Board’s determination would also 
take into account projections related to the amount of water savings that will be achieved by 
new projects, based upon installation of water savings plumbing fixtures and devices at the 
properties to be served by the new connections, and required demand offset calculations.  
 
Ms. Griffin has now advised that the County would like a better understanding of what growth 
rate, or how many intent to serve letters the CCSD is considering issuing per year, as part of 
their process of developing a project description for the proposed GMO amendment. Ms. 
Griffin has also noted that recent testimony before the Board of Supervisors by two member of 
the CCSD Board of Directors indicated that the CCSD was considering a 1% growth rate. 
Accordingly, we are asking that the Board of Directors consider this issue and provide 
direction. 

142



 
 

2

 
In considering this matter a couple of points should be kept in mind. First, the existing GMO for 
Cambria contains an annual allocation limit of not to exceed 2.3% of the total number of 
dwelling units within the District (the actual allocation, however, for the years July 1, 2012 
through June 30, 2015 is set at 0%). The current annual GMO limit of 2.3% equates to 
approximately 87 units, based upon staff’s estimate that there are 3779  existing dwelling units 
in Cambria Additionally, in our letter to Ms. Griffin we pointed out that the CCSD’s newly 
approved water management policy that provides for the Interim Issuance of Intent to Serve 
Letters will implement the existing Cambria Community Condition 4.B of the North Coast Area 
Plan and will result in significantly less than the number of dwelling units that could be allowed 
under the County’s 2.3% GMO limit. The number of intent to serve letters that can be issued 
will controlled by the amount of actual water conservation achieved within the District’s service 
area. 
 
As far as options, one approach would be to have staff come back with a detailed analysis of 
estimated supply and demand related to the number of anticipated demand offset retrofit 
points that would be needed, as well as the balance of points in the points bank and the 
expected number of points that are expected to be achieved through various conservation 
efforts. As a practical matter, however, the reality is that given the basis of the Interim Issuance 
of Intent to Serve Letters concept, the number that can actually be issued will be limited by the 
amount of actual water conservation achieved. Therefore, the Board may want to consider 
requesting a relatively small number or percentage. Indeed, even a request of only .5% would 
mean issuing up to 19 intent to serve letters, which should be more than adequate given the 
practical constraints of a program based upon offsetting all increased water use through retrofit 
of existing water fixtures.  
 
Additionally, the following is provided to assist the Board’s consideration of this matter with 
respect to how different percentage limitations equate to the number of dwelling units that 
would be permitted: 
 
  .5% would equal approximately 19 connections; 
1.0% would equal approximately 38 connections; 
1.5% would equal approximately 57 connections; 
2.0% would equal approximately 76 connections. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
 

143



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.B. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 

Mark Miller, Fire Chief 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013  Subject:  Consider Approval of Paramedic  
        Service Provider Agreement and  
        Advanced Life Support (ALS) Agency  
        Designation with San Luis Obispo  
        County EMSA 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve the attached Paramedic Service 
Provider Agreement with the County of San Luis Obispo Emergency Medical Services Agency 
and the designation of the CCSD Fire Department as an Advanced Life Support (ALS 
provider). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The cost for the CCSD Fire Department to operate as an ALS Paramedic agency will be 
approximately $7,000 annually. This increase would be related to maintaining equipment, 
medical supplies, personnel licenses and certifications acquired initially with FEMA grant 
funding in 2010. Periodic replacement (5 to 10 year) of the heart monitor/defibrillator unit 
obtained with grant funding in 2010 will also be necessary.  This unit was obtained for 
approximately $25,000. (It is important to note that the Fire Department has already incurred 
this commitment to maintain ALS staffing and equipment under the current operational 
agreement). It is also probable that Paramedic pay could become an issue for eligible IAFF 
members, which is negotiable, and for qualifying Paramedic Reservists. The cost for additional 
pay for Fire Department compensation is yet to be determined; however over an extended 
period of time in addition to PERS employer contributions going up considerably in the next 
several years could have a significant financial impact on the Department and the CCSD. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The CCSD Board of Directors voted unanimously on May 27, 2010 to support the efforts of the 
CCSD Fire Department to seek ALS designation (non-transporting) within San Luis Obispo 
County. As part of an on-going effort between the CCSD Fire Department and the Cambria 
Community Healthcare District (CCHD), the CCSD Board of Directors drafted a letter of 
support to further the efforts of improving the level of emergency services within the 
community. On May 23, 2013 Steve Lieberman, the Director of the Emergency Medical 
Services Division of the San Luis Obispo County Public Health Department transmitted the 
attached Paramedic Service Provider Agreement, which upon approval, will provide the ALS 
designation for the Fire Department. The Agreement is necessary in order to comply with  

144



 
 

2

22 Cal. Code Regulations Section 100168, which require that providers of ALS enter into a 
written agreement with the local EMS agency. 
 
Prior to SLO EMSA approval, the CCSD and CCHD have partnered together via an 
amendment to their mutual aid agreement for the CCSD FD to provide ALS services with 
qualified Paramedic personnel. This agreement served to make available the Paramedic 
personnel on the CCSD fire engine. The ALS designation will also streamline efforts toward 
future shared services Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) with the CCHD. 
 
Given Cambria’s remote location, retirement aged and transient (tourist) population, and the 
CCHD’s extended service area outside of the CCSD – often responding to emergency service 
calls out of the area, including north on Highway 1 to the Monterey County line – provides 
justification for a second ALS designated agency within the CCSD. The CCHD also provides 
mutual aid services within the greater SLO county area, thereby again extending its services 
outside of Cambria. Maintaining a Paramedic on the CCSD Fire Department engine would 
insure ALS response to the community in the event of ambulance unavailability due to 
transport or responses to Monterey County or their greater response area. It also would 
provide enhanced emergency service capability in the event of mass casualty and disaster 
scenarios. 
 
Attachment: Paramedic Service Provider Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
 

145



 

PARAMEDIC SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT 
between 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES AGENCY 
and 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
 
 

 

 This Agreement is entered into by and between the County of San Luis Obispo, a public 
entity and legal subdivision of the State of California, acting through its Public Health 
Department, Emergency Medical Services Agency (the “County” or “EMS Agency”) and the 
Cambria Community Services District Fire Department (“CCSD”), an independent special 
district in the State of California (“Provider”). 

 

 WHEREAS, EMS Agency is the designated agency responsible for the administration of 
emergency medical services in the County of San Luis Obispo (California Health and Safety 
Code § 1797.200); and 

 WHEREAS, EMS Agency is required to plan, implement, and evaluate an emergency 
medical services system consisting of an organized pattern of readiness and response services 
based on public and private agreements and operational procedures (Health and Safety Code § 
1797.204); and 

 WHEREAS, no person or organization may provide “advanced life support” (ALS), also 
known as “paramedic,” services unless that person or organization is an authorized part of the 
emergency medical services system of the local EMS agency (Health and Safety Code § 
1797.178); and 

 WHEREAS, a provider of ALS must have a written agreement with the local EMS 
agency to participate in the EMS system and to comply with all applicable state regulations and 
local policies and procedures, including participation in the local EMS agency’s continuous 
quality improvement program (22 Cal. Code Regulations § 100168); and  

 WHEREAS, Provider is willing and able to provide ALS within its jurisdiction and the 
EMS Agency can provide legal authorization for Provider to do so through a written agreement;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals and obligations undertaken herein, 
the parties agree as follows: 

 

146



Page 2 of 5 
 

A. Scope of Services.   

 1. Provider shall be responsible for providing prehospital ALS emergency services 
in accordance with EMS Agency policies and protocols and state law and regulations, within the 
“Primary Service Area” described by the black boundary line on the map attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, until patient care is assumed by approved ALS transport personnel.   

 2. Provider shall participate in the San Luis Obispo County EMS system and comply 
with all applicable state and federal law and regulations, and local ordinances, policies and 
procedures, including participation in the EMS Agency’s continuous quality improvement (CQI) 
program. 

 3. Provider shall provide emergency medical service response on a continuous 
twenty-four hour per day basis.  

 4. Provider shall utilize and maintain telecommunications as specified by the EMS 
Agency.  If at any time during the term of this Agreement, EMS Agency amends, revokes, or 
modifies its telecommunications policies or procedures, EMS Agency will notify Provider in 
writing at least 90 days before such change(s) are implemented.  Upon notice of an amendment, 
revocation, or modification to EMS Agency’s telecommunications policies or procedures, 
Provider and EMS Agency agree to enter into a reasonable meet and confer process, if Provider 
believes the proposed changes to the telecommunications policies or procedures may adversely 
affect the Provider’s financial ability to comply with the policies and procedures.  The EMS 
Agency will make the final determination on whether to implement any proposed changes taking 
into consideration any issues presented in the meet and confer process 

 5. Provider shall maintain a drug and solution inventory, and medical equipment and 
supplies, as approved by EMS Agency and in compliance with state law and regulations.  

 6. Provider shall ensure that all paramedics employed by Provider have a current 
paramedic license and active accreditation in San Luis Obispo County, and that they have and 
maintain all other certifications and training required by the EMS Agency policies and protocols.  

 7. Provider shall be responsible for assessing its paramedics’ current knowledge of 
local policies, procedures, and protocols, and for assessing its paramedics’ skills competency.   

 8. Provider shall ensure that, for every patient response, a Patient Care Report (PCR) 
is created, maintained, and distributed in accordance with EMS Agency policies and protocols.  
Provider shall provide PCRs upon request to the EMS Agency 

 9. Provider shall have an internal CQI program that has been approved by EMS 
Agency. 

147



Page 3 of 5 
 

 10. EMS Agency shall monitor Provider’s performance of duties and obligations 
under this Agreement and enforce the provisions of the Agreement as necessary. EMS Agency 
shall notify Provider of and afford Provider an opportunity to respond to any concerns about 
Provider’s performance of duties and obligations under this Agreement.  The EMS Agency shall 
provide for system medical control and direction by the EMS Agency Medical Director.  EMS 
Agency may immediately suspend or revoke this Agreement for any failure of Provider to 
comply with applicable policies, procedures, and regulations.   

B. Term. 

 1. This Agreement shall be effective on the date (hereafter the “Effective Date”) on 
which it is signed by the EMS Agency Medical Director and shall have an initial term of five 
years, unless terminated earlier pursuant to terms of this Agreement.  At the end of the initial 
term, EMS Agency shall have the option and authority to extend the term of this Agreement for 
an additional five years.  Upon expiration of the second term, this Agreement shall be 
automatically renewed on an annual basis unless and until the Agreement is terminated pursuant 
to paragraph B.2. herein. 

 2. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by either party, at its sole 
discretion, upon 30 days written notice to the other party.  This Agreement may be terminated on 
less than 30 days notice by written mutual consent.  EMS Agency is authorized to exercise the 
discretion to terminate this Agreement on behalf of the County. 

C. Notices. 

 All notices required hereunder shall be in writing and served personally or by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, at the addresses shown below: 

 Cambria CSD Fire Department  San Luis Obispo County EMS Agency 
 Attn: Fire Chief    Attn: Administrator 
 P.O. Bx 65     2180 Johnson Ave., 2nd Floor 
 Cambria, CA 93428    San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
 
D. Indemnification. 

 Provider shall bear all costs associated with its provision of services under this 
Agreement.  The EMS Agency shall not be liable for any costs or expenses incurred by Provider 
as a result of this Agreement.  Provider shall defend, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the 
County and its officers and employees from any and all claims, costs and liability for any 
damages or injury to persons or property, including without limitation all consequential damages, 
from any cause whatsoever arising, directly or indirectly from or connected with the operations 
or services of the Provider or its agents, servants, employees or officers, save and except claims 

148



Page 4 of 5 
 

or litigation arising through the negligence or willful misconduct of the County or its officers or 
employees..   

E. Independent Parties. 

 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a relationship of employer and 
employee, or principal agent, or partnership, or joint venture, or any relationship other than that 
of independent parties contracting with each other solely for the purpose of carrying out the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

F. Entire Agreement, Amendments, and Modifications. 

 This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements and constitutes the entire 
understanding of the parties.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by the mutual 
written consent of the parties.  References in this Agreement to statutes, ordinances, laws, 
regulations, and policies mean and include those authorities as they presently exist and, as of and 
from the subsequent effective dates, amendments and successor provisions that may be adopted 
from time to time.  No specific amendment to the Agreement is required to include or 
incorporate subsequent revisions to authorities cited or referred to herein. 

G. Assignment and Subcontracting. 

 Because this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized services of Provider, 
Provider may not assign, transfer, delegate, or sublet any interest herein without the prior written 
consent of EMS Agency.  Any such assignment, transfer, delegation, or sublease without EMS 
Agency’s prior written consent shall be null and void.  This Agreement does not authorize 
Provider to offer or provide any medical transportation services.  

H. Venue.  

 This Agreement shall be deemed to have been jointly drafted by the parties and shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Most duties 
and obligations of the parties hereunder are performed in San Luis Obispo County. Both parties 
reserve the right to request a change of venue for any action or proceeding that may arise out of 
this Agreement. 

 

/ / / 

 

/ / / 

 

149



Page 5 of 5 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County of San Luis Obispo and Provider have executed this 
Agreement on the day(s) and year hereinbelow set forth. 

 
 

PROVIDER: 
Cambria Community Services District 
 
 
 
By:     Date: ________________________ 
 NAME 
 TITLE       
 
 
COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
 
 
 
By:         Date:       
 Thomas Ronay, MD, FACEP 
 Medical Director, County EMS Agency 
 
 
 
By:         Date:       
 Penny Borenstein, MD, MPH 
 County Health Officer 
 

150



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.C. 
 
FROM: Jerry Gruber General Manager 
  Kathy Choate, District Clerk 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013  Subject:  Cast Ballot for California Special   
        Districts Association (CSDA) Board of  
        Directors Election 2013, Region Four,  
        Seat B 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors vote for one of the nominees for CSDA Board of 
Directors, Region Four, Seat B. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Five individuals have been nominated to fill the CSDA Board of Directors Election 2013, 
Region Four, Seat B. The term would expire in December 2017. The nominee(s) are as 
follows: 
 
 Tim Ruiz, East Niles Community Services District 
 Craig Baltimore, Los Osos Community Services District 
 Robert Blair, Nipomo Community Services District 
 Felma Hurdle, Oceano Community Services District 
 Amanda Rice, Cambria Community Services District 
  
Each independent special district may vote for one nominee. The completed ballot is to be 
returned to the CSDA office no later than Friday, August 2, 2013, 5:00 PM. A copy of the ballot 
is attached with information about the candidates who have submitted his/her candidate 
statement to CSDA. 
 
 
Attachments:  CSDA Mail Ballot Information 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
 
 
 
 
 

151



152



153



154



155



156



CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

TO:  Board of Directors      AGENDA NO. 9.D. 
       
FROM: Jerry Gruber, General Manager 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Meeting Date: June 27, 2013  Subject: Consider Adoption of Resolution 
        28-2013 for the Election of Directors to  
        the Special District Risk Management  
        Authority Board of Directors   
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Adopt Resolution 28-2013 selecting candidates to serve as Directors on the Board of Directors 
for the Special District Risk Management Authority. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The CCSD is a member of the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), 
participating in SDRMA’s property, liability, and worker’s compensation insurance programs. 
 
SDRMA notified members in May 2013 of nominations for four (4) seats on the SDRMA’s 
Board of Directors. The CCSD Board nominated Director Clift at its March 21, 2013, regular 
meeting, per Resolution 10-2013. Nominations were received by the May 3, 2013, deadline 
from seven (7) candidates. 
 
SDRMA’s Election Committee confirmed that all seven (7) candidates met the qualification 
requirements and submitted their nomination documents in accordance with SDRMA policy. 
 
Attached are the Candidate Statements of Qualifications. The Board is asked to select up to 
four (4) candidates. The seven candidate statements are attached for your consideration. The 
candidates are: Muril Clift, Mike Scheafer, John Woolley, Timothy Unruh, Jean Bracy, Dennis 
Mayo, and David Aranda. 
 
Signed resolution ballots must be received by SDRMA on or before 5:00 p.m., on Tuesday, 
August 27, 2013. The 4-year terms for newly elected SDRMA Directors will begin on January 
1, 2014, and terminate on December 31, 2017. 
 
Attachments:  Resolution 28-2013 
  SDRMA Director Candidate Statements of Qualifications 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
BOARD ACTION: Date      Approved:     Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS:  ___ THOMPSON ___ BAHRINGER ___ CLIFT ___ RICE___ROBINETTE____ 
 
 

157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174


	Agenda
	MANAGER'S REPORT
	SR 6 A General Manager's Rpt
	SR 6 A GM Rpt Fin Mgr Rpt
	SR 6 A GM Rpt Fin Mgr Rpt Cash & Investments Balances
	SR 6 A GM Rpt Fin Mgr Rpt Debt Schedule
	SR 6 A Fire Chief Report
	SR 6 A Fire Stats June 2013
	SR 6 A Dist Eng Rpt Addendum to GM Rpt
	SR 6 A Cambria EIS_EIR 2013Jun19 attach to Eng rpt
	SR 6 A Utilities Manager
	SR 6 A Copy of WELL LEVEL SUMMARIES 6-15-13
	SR 6 A Facilities and Resources Report
	SR 6 A GM Rpt Admin Office Rpt June 2013 clean

	Consideration to Approve Expenditures May 2013
	SR 7 A Expenditure Report for May, 2013
	SR 7 A Expenditure Report Department Codes

	Consideration to Approve Minutes of Board of Directors Regular Meeting, May 23, 2013
	SR 7 B 2013 0523 DRAFT CCSD MINUTES

	Consideration to Adopt Resolution 20-2013 Approving Award of Fire Hazard Fuel Reduction Contract
	SR 7 C FHFR Staff Report Contract Award 2013 FINAL
	SR 7 C 2013 FHFR Contract pkg
	SR 7 C Reso 20 2013 Award of Contract
	SR 7 C Exhibit E Bushwacker 1 Bid Proposal

	Consideration to Approve Easement Agreement between CCSD and SLO County for Dedication of Easement from CCSD to SLO County for Property Located on Main Street Cambria APN 013-151-045 Main Street Bridge Project
	SR 7 D Easement Deed to PGE supporting Main St bridge project FINAL
	SR 7 D attachments re PGE-CCSD easment deed

	Consideration to Adopt Resolution 25-2013 Approving Revised Senior Water Operator Salary Rate
	SR 7 E Consideration to Adopt Reso 25 2013 Apprv Senior Water Systems Revised Salary Range clean
	SR 7 E Reso 25 2013 Appv Water Systems Op Revised Salary Range clean
	SR 7 E Exhibit A to Reso 25 2013 SEIU sal chart 7-1-13

	Consideration to Adopt Resolution 26-2013 Approving Revised Facilities and Resources Supervisor Salary Rate
	SR 7 F Consideration to Adopt Reso 26 2013 Approving Revised Facilities and Resources Supervisor Salary Range
	SR 7 F Reso 26 2013 Appv Facilities and Resources Revised Salary Range clean
	SR 7 F Exhibit A to Reso 26 2013 MCE sal chart 7-1-13

	Consideration to Approve Resolution 27-2013 of the Board of Directors of the Cambria Community Services District in Support of the Preservation of Tax-Exempt Financing
	SR 7 G Adopt Reso in Support of Preserving Tax Exempt Financing FINAL
	SR 7 G Letter to Senator Feinstein
	SR 7 G Letter to Senator Boxer
	SR 7 G Letter to Congresswoman Capps
	SR 7 G Reso 27-2013

	Consideration of Report Regarding Personnel Matters and General Manager Authority
	SR 7 H CCSD staff report re Personnel Matters and General Manager Authority

	Consideration of Resolution 29-2013 Adopting a Revised Board of Directors Expense Reimbursement Policy
	SR 7 I CCSD Staff Report Board Reimbursement Policy
	SR 7 I CCSD Reso Travel Policy--GC 532322

	Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 21-2013 Approving the CCSD Budget for Fiscal Year 2013/2014
	SR 8 A Adopt Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Budget
	SR 8 A FY 2013-2014 Budget Executive Summary
	SR 8 A FY 2013-2014 Organization Chart
	SR 8 A Draft FY 2013-2014 Budget
	SR 8 A Approve FY 2013-2014 Budget Reso 21-2013

	Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 22-2013 Approving a 1.3% CPI Adjustment in the Fire Suppression Benefit Assessment
	SR 8 B Adopt 1.3% Increase in Fire Sup Bene Assess
	SR 8 B Approve 1.3% Increase Fire Supress Bene Assess Reso 22-2013

	Discussion and Consideration to Introduce Ordinance 04-2013 Adding Chapter 1.06 to Provide Informal Bidding Procedures under the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (Section 22000 et seq. of the California Public Contract Code) and Adopt Resolution 24-2013 in the Matter of Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures
	SR 8 C Staff Report Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Ordinance DRAFT
	SR 8 C Draft Ordinance 04-2013 adding Chapter 1.06 to Provide Informal Bidding Procedures
	SR 8 C UPCCAA Reso DRAFT

	Discussion and Consideration to Confirm Itemized Report and Consider Adoption of Resolution 23-2013 to Collect Delinquent Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Charges on the County Tax Roll
	SR 8 D Adopt Reso to Collect Delinquent Solid Waste Collection Charges to Tax Roll
	SR 8 D Reso 23 2013 Solid Waste Deliquency Collection
	SR 8 D Itemized List of Delinquent Solid Waste Accounts

	Discussion and Consideration of Numerical or Percentage Limit Related to Amendment of San Luis Obispo County Growth Management Ordinance
	SR 9 A Consideration of Numerical or Percentage Limit Related to Amendment of SLO County Growth Managemen Ordinance

	Discussion and Consideration to Approve Paramedic Service Provider Agreement between County of San Luis Obispo Emergency Medical Services Agency and Cambria Community Services District
	SR 9 B Approval of Paramedic Service Provider Agreement
	SR 9 B ALS Provider Agreement Cambria CSD Fire 6-14-13 Final Version

	Discussion and Consideration to Cast Ballot for California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of Directors Election 2013, Region Four
	SR 9 C Cast Ballot CSDA Board of Directors 2013 Region Four Seat B
	SR 9 C CSDA BALLOT INFORMATION

	Discussion and Consideration to Adopt Resolution 28-2013 for the Election of Directors to the Special District Risk Management Authority Board of Directors
	SR 9 D SDRMA Election of Directors to SDRMA
	SR 9 D Resolution 28 2013 SDRMA Ballot
	SR 9 D SDRMA Election Ballot Instructions_Candidate Statements


